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Fellow Shareholders,

In late Fiscal 2006 we launched a new strategy at Planar with the goal of transforming our company into a leading
supplier of specialty display products across several specialty display markets. Since that time we have seen
tremendous change at Planar and we have made significant progress in our efforts to implement our strategy.

As we exited Fiscal 2007 we experienced record 4™ quarter revenues and record annual revenues. In the 4™ quarter over
40% of our revenue came from sources that did not exist within Planar prior to the launch of our new strategy. Our
specialty display revenue for the 4" quarter was nearly $65M and represented 74% growth when compared to our
specialty revenue for the 4™ quarter of Fiscal 2006, At the revenue line we are clearly seeing the transformation take
shape.

Change has taken place across our portfolio as we pursue growth in our specialty revenues. Below is a brief description
of our activities in each of our business units.

in our Industrial Business Unit, we have been investing for some time in additional selling, marketing and product
development resources with the goal of tuming around a declining revenue trend. These investments have begun to
create design wins and in the 3™ quarter we experienced sequential growth in our Industrial Business Unit for the first
time in a while. The growth trend continued with sequential growth In the 4” quarter and our goal is to see year on year
growth in Fiscal 2008.

In our Medical Business Unit we have been investing to expand our OEM revenues through additional selling resources.
Additionally, we have been investing in the development of a new technology base for use in our diagnostic imaging
monitor series. This new technology base has the potential to enable the highest resolution monitors in the market and
was introduced publicly at the recent RSNA show. We still have a bot of work to complete the technology development
but the reaction to its introduction was quite positive.

in our Commercial Business Unit we have been working to improve the profitability opportunities by focusing on higher
margin products. In Fiscal 2007 we saw strong growth in our non general purpose monitor product lines including
touch monitors and projection. Additionally, late in the fiscal year we launched a new integrated thin client display with
the goal of further expanding our speciaity portfolio in our Commercial Business Unit.

Late in Fiscal 2006 we acquired Clarity Visual Systems which formed the base for our new Control Room and Signage
Business Unit. A great deal of energy was spent during Fiscal 2007 integrating the new business unit into Planar along
with developing new products and capabilities to drive growth. The Control Room and Signage Business unit
experienced strong growth in Fiscal 2007 while launching a number of new products and expanding the functionality of
our digital signage software platform named Coolsign. We believe the integration activities along with the new product
capabilities better position us to not only grow revenues in Fiscal 2008 but to improve profitability as well.

As part of our new strategy we launched a new initiative by establishing a new Home Theater Business Unit aimed at the
high end custom installed home theater system business. We hired a small team and launched our initial producis in
late 2006. In Fiscal 2007 we accelerated our strategy 1o pursue this market segment by acquiring Runco International, 3
leader in high end home theater solutions, The acquisition was completed in the 3" quarter of our fiscal year and we are
busily working to integrate the Runco operations. The integration activities will continue well into Fiscal 2008 as we
pursue our goals of revenue and profit growth in the home theater segment.

While we have made a great deal of progress transforming the revenue line within the company, we have not yet
achieved our sirategic goals of expanding our profitability. As we move inta the new fiscal year, improving our
profitability will be a key focus. We believe we have oppartunities to drive profit improvement through revenue growth
and we will continue to pursue them. We alsa believe that completing our integration activities and focusing on
enhancing productivity will be a key to expanding our profitability.

In summary,  think we have made real progress in transforming our company and yet we still have a great deal of work
to do. | believe our new strategy along with the talented employee base can offer opportunities 1o enhance shareholder
value going forward and that is our focus.

Best Regards,

A A

Gerry Perkel
President and CEO
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Part |
BUSINESS

Item1. General

Planar Systems, Inc. is a provider of specialty display solutions for customers in industrial, medical,
command and contro), digital signage, specialty home theater, and commercial markets. Products include display
components, completed displays, display systems and software based on a variety of flat panel and projection
technologies. The Company has a global reach with sales offices in North America, Europe and Asia.

The electronic specialty display industry is driven by the proliferation of display products, from both the
increase in “smart” devices throughout modern life and flat panels’ versatility for a wider range of uses; the
ongoing need for system providers and integrators to rely on display expens to provide solutions; and the
emerging market for targeting advenising and messaging to consumers using large format digital signs.

Planar is organized around five business segments—Industrial, Medical, Control Room and Signage, Home
Theater, and Commercial.

Business Units and Markets
Indusirial

This business focuses on providing primarily embedded, ruggedized/customized displays to Original
Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) to include in their systems. Key technologies in this segment include
Electroluminescent (EL) Displays, Active-mairix Liquid Crystal Displays (AMLCD), and passive Liquid Crystal
Displays (LCD). These technologies are used in a wide variety of applications and industries including
instrumentation, medical equipment, vehicle dashboards, and military applications. Industrial segment activities also
include sales related 1o Atomic Layer Deposition (ALD) technology. ALD is a surface controlled thin film
deposition method with sub-nanometer precision, and is used in nanotechnology, semiconductor technology,
advanced optical devices and also in conventional industrial applications. Planar provides ALD based services and
expertise including customer specific coating and material solutions and foundry based coating services. Planar also
manufactures and sells ALD reactors for customers’ in-house research and development and production.

Medical

This business focuses on selling very high-resolution diagnostic monitors to hospitals and medical professionals
(primarily radiologists) for use in reading digita) medical images and performing diagnosis. The monitors are
medically certified by the FDA, range from [9” to 30" diagonals, and are available in both color and grayscale
models. A complementary software offering allows users to control the colors and levels of grayscale on these
monitors 1o international and recognized DICOMM standards to ensure that the images look exactly the same on
every display. The Company’s long-term strategy in this market is to identify display-based needs in the heaithcare
environment and deploy superior industry knowledge and product engineering to provide targeted solutions.

Control Room and Signage

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, the Company added a rew business unit, Control Reom and Signage, as a
result of the acquisition of Clarity Visual Systems, Inc. In fiscal 2006 results for this business unit were aggregated
with the Industrial segment as they did not meet the threshold requirements for separate disclosure at that time. Prior
year amounts have been reclassified from the Industrial segment to the Conirol Room and Signage segment lo
conform with the fiscal 2007 presentation. This business has two primary markets: the first. Command and Control,
provides high-resolution video walls for the security, governmental, telecom, energy, industrial, broadcast, and
transportation sectors; the second market served by this business, Digital Signage, is the emerging, high-growth
market for digital signs. Key technologies used in solutions for video walls include rear-projection video cubes and
image processing hardware and software. For Digital Signage, solutions are made up of large-format, flat-panel
LCD displays combined with industry-leading digital signage software. Industries served with Digital Signage
solutions include transportation, retail, banking, public venue advertising (indoor), and casino/hospitality.
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Home Theater

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, the Company anncunced its entry into the Specially Home Theater
market, In fiscal 2006 activities from this business unit were aggregated with the Commercial segment as they
did not meet the threshold requirements for separate disclosure at that time. In the third quarter of 2007, the
Company acquired Runco Imernational Inc., which is included in the Home Theater segment. Prior year amounts
have been reclassificd from the Commercial segment to the Home Theater segment to conform with the 2007
presentation. This segment sells innovative products for the high-end home theater enthusiast including high-
performance home theater projection systems, large-format thin displays, and unique front-projection screens.
This business goes to markel under three uniquely positioned brands: Runco, Vidikron, and Planar branded
Home Theater products. Runco and Vidikron products are sold directly to custom home installation dealers,
primarily in the United States: Planar branded products are distributed through specialty home theater distributors
in countries throughout North America, Europe, Australia and Asia.

Commercial

LCD desktop monitors, other touch displays and projectors comprise the product offerings in the
Company's Commercial business unit. The predicted slowing of growth in the deskiop monitor market is being
reflected in this business unit as efforts are shified from top-line growth to bottom-line profit. The majority of
products are sold to business buyers in North America through third party distributors. The Company’s strategy
going forward is focused on improving consistent profitability through the offering of higher margin products,
such as projectors, retworked displays, wide format monitors. and touch displays.

Research and Product Development

Planar makes investments in research and product development activities. Research expenses are primarily
related 1o the commercialization of display technologies, new system architectures, software development and
fundamental process improvements. Product development expenses are directly reluted to the design, prototyping
and developmem of new producis and technologies. Expenses consist primarily of salaries, project materials,
outside services, allocation of facility expenses and other costs associated with the Company’s ongoing efforts to
develop new products, processes and enhancements. The Company spent $16.0 million, $10.3 million, and $10.5
million on research, development and product engineering for the fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.
These expenses were partially offset by contract funding from both government agencies and private sector
companies of $0.7 million, $0.3 million, and $0.7 million, in fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Intellectual Property

The Company holds a number of patents, trade secrets, trademarks. copyrights and other elements of
intellectual property, and uses nondisclosure agreements and other measures to protect its proprietary rights. A
primary success factor in our markeis is developing in-depth familiarity with the needs of the end users of our
products. The continual product development, exclusive product features and technical expertise that resuli from
this knowledge drive the results of our products in the marketplace.

Branding, Marketing and Sales

Efforts to raise market awareness and competitive adventage from the Planar brand are continuous.
Marketing efforts focus on identilying prospects and communicating the atributes foremost in the minds of
purchasing decision-makers. This approach is intended to ensure the highest possible return on investment for
our marketing expense.

The Company employs sales professionals in many countries around the world and sells bath directly to end
users and through reseller channels. The primary focus is creating revenue through reseller channels. At the end
of fisca) 2007, the Company employs sales resources in the United States, Netherlands. Norway. Finland,
Germany, haly, France, UK and China,




Only one customer represented over 10% of the Company’s revenue in fiscal 2007. Sales of primarily
Commercial and Medical products sold to CDW comprised 11%, 17%, and 16% of total consolidated sales in
fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005. Products sold to International Computer Graphics (ICG) comprised 12%, and 10%
of total consolidated sales in fiscal 2006, and 2005.

Backlog

The Company believes the backlog metric is of limited utility in predicling future sales because the
Commercial segment, a growing portion of the Medical segment, the Command and Control segment, and the
Home Theater segment operate on a ship-to-order basis.

As of September 28, 2007 and September 29, 2006 the Company’s backlog, which includes all accepted
contracts and orders, was approximately $32.5 million and $35.6 million, respectively. Backlog at September 28,
2007 and September 29, 2006 includes orders of approximately $2.3 million and $2.2 million, respectively, for
end-of-life products. Variations in the magnitude and duration of contracts and customer delivery requirements
may result in substantial fluctuations in backlog from period to period.

Manufacturing and Raw Materials

The Company contracts with offshore partners for its manufacturing and assembly capacity, with the
exception of an EL manufacturing facility in Finland and assembly and integration operations in Oregon,
California, and France. The Company belicves that its effective management of these pariners and its global
supply chain is an important competency and competitive advantage,

Quality and reliability are emphasized in the design, manufacture and assembly of all the Company’s
products. All of Planar's facilities have active operator training/centification programs and regularly use
advanced slatistical process control techniques. The Company’s products undergo thorough quality inspection
and testing throughow the manufacturing process. All of the Company's operating units have received and
maintain their 1SO9001 certification, with the exception of the recently acquired Clarity and Runco operalions.
This certification requires that a company meel a set of criteria established by an independent, international
quality organization that measures the quality of systems, procedures and implementation in manufacturing,
marketing and development of products and services.

The Company's EL manufacturing facility in Finland produces a wide range of display types and sizes.
Manufacturing operations consist of the procurement and inspection of componenis, manufacture of EL displays
using a thin-film atomic layer deposition process, final assembly of some components and extensive testing of
finished products.

The Company currently procures from outside suppliers all of its raw materials, including raw glass, driver
integrated circuits, electronic circuit assemblies, power supplies, high-density interconnects, engines, rear-
projection screens, and projectors. Signiftcant raw material supply risks to the Company’s operations involve the
procurement of LCD panel glass and rear-projection screens. The Company strives to buy these materials from
multiple partners and forecast demand as accurately as possible to effectively manage this risk and ensure supply
of these componenis. The Company continues to work at diversifying its supplier base for high resolution glass
and rear-projection screens. The Company procures most of its Runco and Vidikron branded projectors from one
supplier. As such, a significant portion of the Home Theater segment’s revenues are substantially dependent on
the continuation of the company’s relationship with the supplier.

Competition

Holding a strong competitive position in the market for specialty displays requires maintaining a diverse
product portfolio which addresses a wide variety of customer needs. Continuous reductions in the cost of raw
AMLCD panels drive selling prices lower over time. In these situations, the Company strives (o maintain
operating margins by increasing unit volumes, increasing value-added contributions to each unit, providing
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additional value 10 its customers through system integration and services, reducing material costs and managing
expenses in a fiscally disciplined manner. To drive success of new products, the Company maintains a customer-
centric focus to guide targeted research, development and product engineering efforts to meet the needs of end
users.

In addition to the product portfolio, the Company competes with other display manufacturers based upon
commercial availability, price, visual performance (e.g.. brightness, color capabilities, contrast and viewing
angle), brand reputation, firmware, size, design flexibility, power usage, durability, ruggedness and customer
service. The Company believes its total-quality program, wide range of product offerings, flexibility,
responsiveness, technical support and customer satisfaction programs are important Lo its compelitive position.

Planar’s competitive position has recemily been enhanced through the acquisitions of Clarity Visual
Systems, Inc. (Clarity), and Runco International, Inc. (Runce). The Command and Contro! markets and Digital
Signage markets will be pursued by building upon the capabiliiies, experience and marke: positions brought 10
Planar through the Clarity acquisition. The Company's targeted markets for Control Room applications are broad
and growing. Command and Conirol products are used in security, defense, utility, traffic, telecom, and broadcast
contrel rooms throughout the world. The Company's targeted markets for Digital Signage present high growth
opportunities where leading companies con create defensible brands and distribution channels for high margin
products and services. The Home Theater market will be pursued by building upon the capabilities, experience,
and reputation of the Runco and Vidikron brands brought 10 Planar through the Runco acquisition, along with the
existing Planar branded home theater products. The Company’s offerings in the Home Theater segments include
innovative products for the high-end home thealer enthusiast including high-performance home theater projection
systems, large-format thin video displays, and unique front-projection screens. Runco and Vidikron products are
sold directly to custom home installation dealers, primarily in the United States, while Planar branded home
theater products are distributed through specialty home theater distributors throughoul North America, Euvrope,
Australia, and Asia.

The Company's direct competitors are numerous and diverse. In display sysiems including AMLCD
compenents sourced from manufacturers, Planar’s value-added specialty displays products compete against those
of Barco, Totoku, and others in the Medical market; and NEC-Mitsubishi, Viewsonic, Dell and others in the
Commercial market. In the Industrial market, the Company sometimes competes against the internal engineering
functions of some of its OEM customers. In addition, other industrial display systems specialists include Global
Display Solutions, White Electronic Designs Corporation and a variety of small, highly specialized producers.
Our EL business primarily competes with substitute technologies. Qur principal competitors in the Digital
Signage market include Scala, lnc., NEC Corporation of America’s Visual Systems division, 3M Digital Signage,
and Wireless Ronin. Our principal competitors for the Command and Control market include Barco, Mitsubishi
Eleciric Corp., and Christie Digital Systems, Inc. Our Home Theater products primarily compete against those of
SIM2, Marantz, Dreamvision, and Pioneer Elite.

Employees

People are considered 1o be a key element for success by the Company. Planar’s future success will depend
largely on its ability 10 continue to attract, retain and motivate highly skilled and qualified personnel,

The Company’s U.S. employees are not represented by any collective bargaining units and the Company has
never experienced a work stoppage in the U.S. The Company's Finnish and French employees are, for the most
pan, covered by national union contracts. These contracts are negotiated annually between the various upions and
the Employer's Union and stipulate benefits, wage rates, wage increases, grievance and termination procedures
and work conditions.

As of September 28, 2007, the Company had 690 employees worldwide; 455 in the United Siates and 235 in
Europe and Asia. Of these, 150 were engaged in marketing and sales, 91 in research and product development,
86 in general and administration, and 363 in manufacturing and manufacturing support.
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Available Information

The Company's Internet website address is www.planar.com. Planar’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, are available through the Internet website
as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and
Exchange Commission. The Company's Internet website and the information contained therein or connected
thereto are not intended to be incorporated into the Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ftem 1A, Risk Factors

The following issues and uncertainties, among others, should be considered in evaluating the Company’s
future financial performance and prospects for growth,

We may experience losses selling Commercial products.

The market for our Commercial products is highly competitive and subject to rapid changes in prices and
demand. Our failure 1o successfully manage inventory levels or quickly respond to changes in pricing,
technology or consumer tastes and demand could result in lower than expected revenue, lower gross margin and
excess, obsolete and devalued inventories of our Commercial products which could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and resuhis of operations.

Market conditions were characterized by rapid declines in end user pricing during portions of 2005, 2006,
and 2007. Such declines cause the Company's inventory to lose value ard trigger price protection obligations for
channe) inventory. Supply and pricing of LCD panels has been very volatile and will likely be in the futurc. This
volatility, combined with lead times of five to eight weeks, may cause us to pay 1eo much for products or suffer
inadequate product supply.

We do not have long-term agreements with our resellers, who generally may terminate our relationship with
30- 10 60-days notice. Such action by our resellers could substantially harm our operating results in this segment.

Revenue from Commercial products grew to $102.2 million in fiscal 2005, and decreased to $83.4 million
and $78.6 million in fiscal 2006 and 2007, respectively. This revenue could continue to decrease due to
reductions in demand, compelition, alternative products, pricing changes in the marketplace and potential
shortages of products which would adversely affect our revenue levels and our results of operations. In addition,
strategic changes made by the Company’s management to invest greater resources in specially display markets
could result in reduced revenue for the Commercial segment. This segment absorbs a portion of the Company’s
fixed costs. If this segment was discontinued or substantially reduced in size, it may not be possible to eliminate
all of the fixed overhead costs that are allocated to the segment. If that were the case, a portion of the altocaled
fixed costs would have to be absorbed by the other segments, potentially adversely affecting our overall financial
performance,

Future operating results of Planar could be adversely affected as a result of purchase accounting
treatment and the impact of amortization and impairment of intangible assets and stock compensation
expense relating to the acquisitions of Clarity and Runco.

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, Planar has accounted for
the Clarity and Runco acquisitions using the purchase method of accounting. In addition, we expect Planar will
incur large, ongoing expenses resulting from the amortization of intangible assets, including but not limited 10
purchased developed technology, trademarks and tradenames, and customer relationships. Under the purchase
method of accounting, Planar has recorded the cash paid and the market value of the Planar capital stock issued
in connection with the acquisitions, the fair value of the options 10 purchase Planar common stock, and the
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amount of direct transaction costs as the cost of acquiring the businesses of Clarity and Runco. Planar allocated
the cost to the individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed, including verious identifiable intangible assets
(such as developed acquired technology, acquired trademarks and irade names and acquired customer
relationships), based on their respective fair values at the date of the completion of the acquisition.

Any excess of the purchase price over the fair market values of the underlying net identifiable assets
deemed acquired was accounted for as goodwill. Planar will not be required to amortize goodwill against income
but will be subject to an annual test for impairment or on an interim basis if an event or circumsiance indicates
that it is more likely than not that an impairment has been incurred. Management will consider these and other
factors in performing the annual test for impairment. A determination of impairment could result in a matenal
charge to operations in a period in which an impairment toss is incurred. While such a charge would not have an
effect on the Company’s cash flows, it would impact the net income in the period it was incurred.

Planar will potentially incur significant costs associated with the acquisition and integration of Clarity and
Runco.

The Company believes that it may incur additional charges to operations, which are not currently reasonably
estimable, in subsequent quarters following the acquisitions associated with integration of Clarity and Runco. If
the benefits of the acquisition do not exceed the costs associated with the acquisition and inlegration, Planar’s
financial results and cash flows could suffer and the market price of Planar's common stock could decline.

The Company may not be successful in its effort to enter new markets with new products.

The Company has entered the Home Theater display market with new products. Additionally, the Company
completed the acquisition of Runco and sells Runco and Vidikron branded products. These are products and
markets that have not been part of business in the past and we may not execute our plans for these products and
markets successfully. Penetration of the market for Planar-branded Home Theater products may not be
successful. Failure to execute our plans and achieve desired penetration could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our operating resulis have significant fluctuations.

In addition 10 the variability resulting from the short-term nature of our customers’ commiiments, other
factors contribute to significant periodic quanerly fluctuations in our results of operations. These factors include.
but are not limited to, the following:

»  the receipt and timing of orders and the timing of delivery of orders;

»  the volume of orders relative to our capacity:

= product introductions and market acceptance of new products or new generations of products;
» evolution in the lifecycles of customers’ products,

»  changes in cost and availability of labor and components;

. product mix;

*  variation in operating expenses;

»  vesting of restricted stock based upon achievernent of certain targeted stock prices;

e pricing and availability of competitive products and services; and

»  changes or anticipated changes in economic conditions.

Accordingly, the results of any past periods should not be relied upon as on indication of our future

performance. It is likely that, in some future period, our operaling results may be below expectations of public
market analysts or investors. If this occurs, our stock price may decrease.
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The value of intangible assets and goodwill may become impaired in the future.

The Company has intangible assets recorded on the balance sheet, which refate primarily to developed
technology, trademarks and tradenzmes and customer relationships, The value of intangible assets represents our
estimate of the net present value of future cash flows which can be derived from the intangible assets over time,
and is amortized over the estimated useful life of the underlying assets. The estimated future cash flows of the
imangible assets are evaluated on a regular basis, and if it becomes apparent that these estimates will not be met,
a reduction in the value of intangible assets will be required.

In addition, goodwill has been recorded which relates to the Medical segment, the Control Room and
Signage segment, the Home Theater segment. and the Industrial segment. Goodwill is nol amortized, but is
evaluated annually, or when indicators of potential impairment exist. If the expected future cash flows decline. a
reduction in the value of goodwill will be required, such as the reduction in value incurred in the fourth quarter of
2005,

Our indebtedness could reduce our ability to use cash flow for purposes other than debt service or
otherwise restrict our activities.

The Company assumed a significant amount of debt in conjunction with \he acquisition of Runco in fiscal
2007. This leverage reduces our ability to use cash flow to fund working capital, capital expenditures,
development projects, acquisitions, and other gencral corporate purposes. High leverage also limits flexibility in
planning for, or reacting 1o, changes in business and increases vulnerability to a downtum in the business and
general adverse economic and industry conditions. Substantially all of the assets of the Company are secured by
our credit agreement, which includes certain financial covenants, as discussed in Note 7—Borrowings in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements which is included in ltem 8—Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data in this report. Failure by us to comply with applicable covenants, or to obtain waivers
therefrom, would result in an event of default, and could result in the acceleration of a portion of our debt, which,
in turn could lead to our inability (o pay our debis and the loss of control of our assets.

Shortages of components and materials may delay or reduce our sales and increase our costs.

The inability o obtain sufficient quantities of components and other materials necessary to produce our
displays could result in reduced or delayed sales. We obtain much of the material we use in the manufacture of
our products from a limited number of suppliers, and we generally do not have long-term supply contracts with
any of them. For some of this material we do not generally have a guaranteed aliernative source of supply. As a
result, we are subject to cost fluctuations, supply interruptions and difficulties in obtaining materials. The
Company has in the past and may in the future face difficulties ensuring an adequate supply of quality high
resolution glass used in its products. In the future the Company may also face difficulties ensuring an adequate
supply of the rear-projection screens used in certain Command and Control products. We are continually engaged
in efforts 1o address this risk area.

For most of our products, vendor lead times significamly exceed our customers’ required delivery time
causing us to order to forecast rather than order based on actual demand. Competition in the markel continues o
reduce the period of time customers will wait for product delivery. Ordering raw material and building finished
goods based on our forecast exposes the Company to numerous risks including our inability to service customer
demand in an acceptable timeframe, holding excess and obsolete inventory or baving unabsorbed manufacturing
overhead.

We have increased our reliance on Asian manufacturing companies for the manufacture of displays that we
sell in all the markets that the Company serves. We also rely on centain other contract manufacturing operations
in Asia, including those that produce circuit boards and other components, and those that manufaciure and
assemble certain of our producis. We do not have long-term supply contracts with the Asian contract
manufacturers on which we rely. If any of these Asian manufacturess were to terminate its arrangements with us,
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make decisions to terminate production of these preducts, or become unable to provide these displays to us on a
timely basis, we couid be unable to sell our products until aliemmative manufacturing arrangements are made.
Furthermore, there is no assurance that we would be able 10 establish replacement manufacturing or assembly
relationships on acceptable terms, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operation.

Qur reliance on contract manufacturers involves certain nisks, including, but not limited to:
*  lack of control over production capacity and delivery schedules;

= unanticipated interruptions in transportation and logistics:

*  limited control over quality assurance, manufacturing yields and production costs;

*  potential termination by our vendors of agreements to supply materials (o us, which would necessitate
our contracting of alternative suppliers, which may not be possible;

»  risks associated with intemational commerce, including unexpected changes in legal and regulatory
requirements, foreign currency fluctuations and changes in duties and tariffs; and

*  trade policies and political and economic instability.

Most of the contract manufacturers with which we do business are located in Asia which has experienced
several earthquakes, tsunamis, typhoons, and interruptions to power supplies which resulied in business
interruptions. Our business could suffer significantly if the operations of vendors there or elsewhere were
disrupted for extended periods of time.

A number of factors, including the failure to retain key employees and consultants, could impair Planar’s
ability to successfully integrate the Clarity and Runce businesses, which could harm Planar’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.

The Company is now engaged in the process of integrating Clarity and Runco. each of which had previously
operated independently. Successful integration will require significant efforts by Planar, including the
coordination of product plans, research and development, sales and marketing efforts, management styles and
expectations, and general and administralion activities. The challenges involved in integrating the two businesses
include, but are not limited to, the following:

*  retaining and integrating management and other key employees of each of Clarity and Runco to pursue
the business objectives of Planar;

»  consolidating product plans and coordinating research and development activities to permit efficient
time-to-market introductions and time-to-volume production for new products and technologies;

*  integrating manufacturing operations in multiple locations;
*  integrating sules efforts so that customers can do business easily with Planar;
*  transitioning all facilities to common accounting and information technology systems;

»  developing and maintaining uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies, including controls
over quality assurance and extending Planar's internal controls over financial reporting to the
operations of acquired businesses including Clarity and Runco;

*  maximizing efficiency of operations by eliminating redundant functions, centralizing functions in
appropriate locations to the extent possible and discontinuing unprofitable lines of business; and

»  controlling the costs associated with integration.
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It is not certain that the Clarity and Runco business operations will be successfully integrated in a timely
manner or at all or that any of the anticipated benefits will be realized. The risks of unsuccessful integration of
the companies include:

»  impairment and/or loss of relationships with employees, consultants, customers, distribulors, and/or
suppliers;

+  disruption of Planar's business;
+  distraction of management; and

*+  adverse financial results related to unanticipated expenses associated with integration of the businesses.

In addition, in connection with any future acquisitions or investments, we could:

= issue stock that would dilute our current sharcholders’ percenlage ownership;
*  incur debt and assume liabilities thai could impair our liguidity;

=  incur amortization expense related to intangible assets;

= uncover previously unknown liabilities: or

* incur large and immediate write-offs that would reduce net income,

Any of these factors could prevent us from realizing anticipated benefits of an acquisition or investment,
including operational synergies, economies of scale and increased profit margins and revenue. Acquisitions are
inherently risky. and any acquisition may not be successful. Failure to manage and successfully integrate
acquisitions could harm our business, operating results, and cash flows in a material way. Even when an acquired
company has already developed and marketed products, product enhancements may not be made in a timely
fashion. In addition, unforeseen issues might arise with respect 10 such products afier the acquisition.

The Company faces intense competition.

Each of our markets is highly competitive, and we expect this to continue and even intensify. We belicve
that over time this competition will have the effect of reducing average selling prices of our products. Certain of
our competitors have subsiantially greater name recognition and financial, rtechnical, marketing and other
resources than we do. There is no assurance that our competitors will not succeed in developing or marketing
products that would render our products obsolete or noncompetitive. To the extent we are unable to compeie
effectively against our competitors, whether due to such practices or otherwise, our business, financial condition
and results of operations would be materially adversely affected.

Our ability to compete successfully depends on a number of factors, both within and outside our control.
These factors include. but are not limited to, the following:

»  our effectiveness in designing new product solutions, including those incorporating new technologies;

*  our ability 10 anticipate and address the needs of our customers;

+ the quality, performance, reliability, features, ease of use, pricing and diversity of our product
solutions;

+  foreign currency fluctuations, which may cause competitors’ products to be priced significantly lower
than our product solutions; :

»  the quality of our customer services;
»  the effectiveness of our supply chain management;

*  our ability to identify new vertical markets and develop attractive products for them;
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«  our ability to develop and maintain effective sales channels;
+  the rate at which customers incorporate our product solutions into their own products; and

«  product or technology introductions by our competitors.

Our continued success depends on the development of new products and technologies.

Future results of operations will partly depend on our ability to improve and market our existing products
and 1o successfully develop and market new products. Failing this, our products or technology could become
obsolete or noncompetitive. New products and markets, by their nature, present significant risks and even if we
are successful in developing new products, they typically result in pressure on gross margins during the initial
phases as start-up activities are spread over lower initial sales volumes. We have experienced lower margins
from new products and processes in the past. which have negatively impacted overall gross margins, in addition,
customer relationships can be negatively impacied due to production problems and late delivery of shipments.

Future operating results will depend on our ability to continue to provide new product solutions that
comparc favorably on the basis of cost and performance with competitors. Our success in attracting new
customers and developing new business depends on various factors, including. but not limited 1o, the following:

*  use of advances in technology;

+  innovative development of products for new markets;

+  efficient and cost-effective services;

»  timely completion of the design and manufacture of new product solutions; and

»  adeqguately proteciing our proprietary property.

We face risks associated with international operations.

Our manufacturing, sales and distribution operations in Europe and Asia create a number of logistical and
communications challenges. Qur international operations also expose us to varicus economic, political and other
risks, including, but not limited to, the following:

+  management of a multi-national organization;

+  compliance with local laws and regulatory requirements as well as changes in those laws and
requirements;

*«  employment and severance issues;

s overlap of tax issues;

» tariffs and duties;

*  employee turnover or labor unrest;

*  lack of developed infrastructure;

» difficulties protecting intelectual property;

»  risks associated with outbreaks of infectious diseases:

»  the burdens and costs of compliance with a variety of foreign faws;
= political or economic instability in certain pants of the world; and

= effects of doing business in currencies other than our functional currency.

Changes in policies by the United States or foreign governments resulting in, among other things. increased
duties, higher taxation, currency conversion limitations, restrictions on the transfer or repatriation of funds,




limitations on imports or exports. changes in environmental standards or regulations, foreign currency translation
gains or losses, or the expropriation of private enterprises also could have a materially adverse effect. Any
actions by our host countries to curtail or reverse policies that encourage foreign investment or foreign trade also
could adversely affect our operating results. In addition, U.S. trade policies, such as “most favored nation” status
and wade preferences for certain Asian nations, could affect the attractiveness of our services to our U.S.
customers.

Future viability of the manufacturing facility located in Espoo, Finland is based on continued demand for
EL products.

The majority of the products manufactured at the Company's facility located in Espoo, Finland are based on
EL technology. If demand for EL technology-based products diminishes significantly in the future, it could
become necessary Lo cease manufacturing operations at this facility. which would likely result in an impairment
loss on the associated property, plant and equipment, and restructuring charges related to employee severance.

Variability of customer requirements or losses of key customers may adversely affect our operating
results.

We must provide increasingly rapid product twrnaround and respond to ever-shorter lead times, while at the
same time meet our customers’ product specifications and quality expectations. A variety of conditions, both
specific to individual customers and generally affecting the demand for their products, may cause customers 1o
cancel, reduce, or delay orders. These actions by a significani customer or by a set of customers could adversely
affect our business. On occasion, customers require rapid increases in production, which con strain our resources
and reduce our margins. We may lack sufficient capacity at any given time to meet our customers’ demands.
Commercial and Medical products sold to two customers comprised 17% 29% and 26% of total consolidated
sales in fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. Sales to any of those customers, if lost, would have a material,
adverse impact on the results of operations. If accounts receivable from a significant customer or set of customers
became uncollectible, a resulting charge could have a material, adverse effect on our operations, although the
Company does maintain allowances for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers 1o make
required payments.

We may lose key licensors, sales representatives, foundries, licensees, vendors, other business partners and
employees due to uncertainties regarding the recent acquisitions which could seriously harm Planar,

Sales representatives, vendors and others doing business with us may experience uncertainty about their
future role with Planar or may elect not to continue doing business with Planar, or may seek to modify the terms
under which they do business in ways that are less attractive, more costly, or otherwise damaging to the business
of Planar. Similarly, Planar employees may experience uncenainty about their future role with Planar to the
extent that Planar’s strategies are changed significantly. This may adversely affect Planar’s ability to atract and
retain key management, marketing and technical personnel. The loss of a significant group of key technical
personne! would seriously harm the product development efforts of Planar. The loss of key sales personnel could
cause Planar to lose relationships with existing customers, which could cause a decline in the sales of Planar.

We do not have long-term purchase commitments from our customers.

Our business is generally characterized by short-term purchase orders and non-binding contracts. We
typically plan our production and inventory levels based on internal forecasts of customer demand which rely in
part on nonbinding forecasts provided by our cusiomers. As a result, our backlog generally does not exceed three
months, which makes forecasting our sales difficult. Inaccuracies in our forecasi as a result of changes in
customer demand or otherwise may result in our inability to service customer demand in an acceptable
timeframe, our holding excess and obsolete inventory or having unabsorbed manufacturing overhead. The failure
to obtain anticipated orders and deferrals or cancellations of purchase commitments because of changes in
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customer requirements, or otherwise, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations. We have experienced such problems in the past and may experience such problems in
the future.

Economic or industry factors could result in portions of the Company’s inventory becoming cbsolete or in
excess of anticipated usage.

The Company is exposed to a number of economic and indusiry factors that could result in write-offs of
inventory. These factors include, but are not limited to, technological and regulatory changes in the Company’s
markets, the Company’s abilily to meet changing customer requirements, competitive pressures in products and
prices, forecasting errors, new product introductions, quality issues with key suppliers, product phase-outs, future
customer service and repair requirements, and the availability of key components from the Company’s suppliers.

We must continue to add value to our portfolio of offerings.

Traditional display components are subject o increasing competition to the point of commedification. In
addition, advances in core LCD technology makes standard displays effective in an increasing breadih of
applications. We must add additional value to our products in software and services for which customers are
willing to pay. These areas have not been a significant part of our business in the past and we may not execute
well in the future. Failure to do so could adversely affect our revenue levels and our results of operations.

We must protect our intellectual property, and others could infringe on or misappropriate our rights.

We believe that our continued success partly depends on protecting our proprietary technology. We rely on
a combination of patent, trade secret, copyright and trademark laws, confidentiality procedures and contractual
provisions to protect our intellectual property. We scek to protect some of our technology under trude secret
laws, which afford only limited protection. We face risks associated with our intellectual property, including, but
not limited to, the lollowing:

«  pending patent and copyright applications may not be issued;

»  patent and copyright applications are filed only in Jimited countries;

»  intellectual property Jaws may not protect our intelicctual property rights;

»  others may challenge, invalidate, or circumvent any patent or copyright issued to us;

+  rights granted under patents or copyrights issued to us may not provide competitive advantages to us:

»  unauthorized partics may attempt to obtain and use information that we regard as proprietary despite
our efforts to protect our proprietary rights; and

»  others may independently develop similar technology or design around any patents issued 1o us,

We may find it necessary 1o take legal action in the future to enforce or protect our intellectual propeny
rights or 1o defend against claims of infringement. Litigation cun be very expensive and can distract our
management's time and attention, which could adversely affect our business. In addition, we may not be able to
obtain a favorable outcome in any intellectual property litigation.

Others could claim that we are infringing their patents or other intellectual property rights. In the event of an
allegation that we are infringing on another’s rights, we may not be able 1o obtain licenses on commercially
reasonable terms from that party, if at all, or that party may commence litigation against us. The failure 1o obtain
necessary licenses or other rights or the institution of litigation arising out of such claims could materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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The market price of our common stock may be volatile.

The market price of our common siock has been subject to wide fluctuations. During the past four fiscal
quarters, the closing price of our stock ranged from $6.09 to $12.05. The market price of our common stock in
the future is likely to continue to be subject to wide fluctuations in response to various factors, including, but not
limited 1o, the following:

«  vaniations in our operating results;
»  public announcements by the Company as to its expectations of future sales and net income;

« actual or anticipated announcements of technical innovations or new product developments by us or
our competitors;

»  changes in analysts’ estimates of our financial performance:
«  general conditions in the electronics industry; and

¢  worldwide economic and financial conditions.

In addition, the public stock markets have experienced extreme price and volume fuciuations that have
particularly affected the markel prices for many technology companies and that often have been unrelated 1o the
operating performance of these companies. These broad market fluctuations and other factors may adversely
affect the market price of our common stock.

A significant slowdown in the demand for our customers’ products would adversely affect our business.

In portions of our Medical and Industrial segments, we design and manufacture display solutions that our
customers incorporale into their products. As a result, our success partly depends upon the market acceptance of
our customers’ products. Accordingly, we must identify industries that have significant growth potential and
establish relationships with customers who are successful in those industries. Failure to identify potential growth
opportunities or establish relationships with customers in those industries would adversely affect our business.
Dependence on the success of our customers’ products exposes us to a variety of risks, including, but not limited
10, the lollowing:

«  our ability to match our design and manufacturing capacity with customer demand and to maintain
satisfactory delivery schedules;

+  customer order patterns, changes in order mix and the level and timing of orders thai we can
manufacture and ship in a quarter; and

«  the cyclical nature of the industries and markels our customers serve.

These risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Changes in internal controls or accounting guidance could cause volatility in our stock price.

The Company's internal controls over financial reporting are audited by our independent registered public
accounting firm in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Section 404™). Guidance
regarding implementation and interpretation of the provisions of Section 404 continues 1o be issued by the
standards-setting community. As a result of the ongoing interpretation of new guidance and the audit testing to be
completed in the future, our internal controls over financial reporting may include an unidentified material
weakness which would result in receiving an adverse opinion on our internal controls over financial reporting
from our independent registered public accounting firm. This could result in significant additional expenditures
responding to the Section 404 internal control audit, heightened regulatory scrutiny and potentially an adverse
effect 10 the price of our company's stock.
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In addition, due 1o increased regulatory scrutiny surrounding publicly traded companies, the possibility
exists that a restatement of past financial results could be necessitated by an alternative interpretation of present
accounting guidance and practice. Although management does not currently anticipate that this will occur, a
potential result of such interpretation could be an adverse effect on the Company's stock price.

We must maintain satisfactory manufacturing yields and capacity.

An inabifity to maimain sufficient levels of productivity or to satisfy delivery schedules at our
manufacturing facilities would adversely affect our operating results. The design and manufacture of our EL
displays involves highly complex processes that are sensitive 10 a wide variety of factors, including the level of
contaminants in the manufacturing environment, impurities in the materials used and the performance of
personnel and equipment. At times we have expericnced lower-than-anticipated manufacturing yields and
lengthened delivery schedules and may experience such problems egain in the future, particularly with respect to
new products or technologies. Any such problems could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We cannot provide any assurance that current environmental laws and product quality specification
standards, or any laws or standards enacted in the future, will not have a material adverse eiTect on our
business.

Our operations are subject to environmental and various other regulations in each of the jurisdictions in
which we conduct business. Some of our products use substances, such as lead, that are highly regulated or will
not be allowed in certain jurisdictions in the future. We have redesigned certain products 10 eliminate such
substances in our products. In addition, regulations have been enacted in certain junsdictions which impose
restrictions on waste disposal in the future. If we fail 1o comply with applicable rules and regulations in
connection with the use and disposal of such substances or otherwise, we could be subject 10 significant liability
or loss of future sales. Additionally, the European Union und cenain European and other countries have
established independent standards for certain medical products, including radiological imaging products, that are
different from, and in some cases more restrictive than, the US standards. 1f we are unable to comply with these
regulations or standards, or if other countries establish such regulations or standards with which we are unable to
comply, we may not be allowed to sell our Diagnostic Imaging or other products within the European Union and
in other such countries.

EL products are manufactured at a single location, with no currently available substitute location.

Our EL products, which are based on proprietary technology. are produced in our manufacturing facility
located in Espoo, Finland. Because the EL technology and manufaciuring process is proprietary and unique. there
exists no alternative location where it may be produced, either by the Company, or by another manufacturer. As
such, loss of or damage to the manufacturing facility. or attrition in the facility’s skilled workforce, could cause a
disruption in the manufacturing of the EL producis, which compose a significani portion of our sales.
Additionally, there are many fixed costs associated with such a manufacturing facility. if revenue levels were 10
decrease or other problems were encountered, this could have a material, adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

Qur efforts to develop new technologies may not result in commercial success.

Our research and development efforts with respect to new technologies may not result in market acceptance.
Some or all of those technologies may not successfully make the transition from the research and development
lab to cost-effective production as a result of technology problems, cost issues, yield problems and other factors.
Even when we successfully complete a research and development effort with respect to a particular technology,
we may fail to gain market acceptance due to:

+  inadequate access to sales channels;

«  superior products developed by our competitors:
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*  price considerations;
» ineffective market promotions and marketing programs; and
+ lack of market demand for the products.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None

ltem 2.  Properties

The Company leases its primary manufacturing facilities and various sales offices in the United States and
Europe. The Company leases 98,300 square feet of custom-designed space, including 15,000 square feet of cleanroom
in Beaverton, Oregon for assembly operations. The European facility, located in Espoo, Finland, is a custom-designed
facility in which Planar leases 85,000 square feet, including approximately 15,000 square feet of cleanroom.

The Company entered into a lease in August 2001 for approximately 72,000 square feet of class A office
space in Beaverton, Oregon, which is used for administrative office space, design engineening and associated lab
and research and development activities.

In 1994, the Company acquired a 21,000 square-foot facility, with approximately 6,000 square feet of
cleanroom, also located in Beaverton, Oregon. This facility is being used for research and development activities.

In 2005, the Company entered into a lease of approximately 15,000 square feet of space in Waltham,
Massachusetts, which is used for sales and adminisiration office space, design engineering and associated lab and
research and development activities and quality 1esting for the Medical Business Unit,

In 2006, the Company acquired Clarity Visual Systems, Inc. (Clarity). As a result of the acquisition, the
Company assumed several leases for Clarity’s manufacturing facilities and sales offices in the United States and
" Europe. Most of these leases were terminated in 2007. As of Sepiember 28, 2007 the only leases related to the
acquisition are for 11,700 square feet in Burlingame, California and approximately 9,900 square feet in Albi,
France. The Company does not use the space in Burlingame for operations and has sub-leased the facility to a
third party. The Albi space is used for product development. [n August 2007 the Company entered a leasc for an
additional 30,200 square feet in Albi, also for product development.

In May 2007 the Company acquired substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of Runco
International, Inc. (Runco). As a result of the acquisition, the Company assumed a lease for 47,900 square feet of
space in Union City, California for manufacturing, development, sales, service, and administrative operations.

The Company has field sales offices in key U.S. metropolitan areas and sales offices in Europe and Asia.
The offices are located in the Boston, Ponland, Newark, Helsinki, Munich, Paris, Rome, Amsterdam, and
Shanghai metropolitan areas. The Company also has a procurement office located in Taipei, Taiwan. Lease
commitments for most of these facilities are typically six to twelve months., None of these sales offices has
significant leasehold improvements nor are any planned.

The Company is evaluating ils current facility requirements in connection with the recent acquisition of
Runco Iniemational, Inc.

ltem 3.  Legal Proceedings

There are no pending, materia! legal proceedings to which the Company is a party or to which any of its
property is subject.

Item 4. Submission of Matter to a Vote of Security Holders
No matters were submitted to stockholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year.
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Part It
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities
Market Information
Shares of the Company’s Common Stock arc traded on the NASDAQ Global Market, under the symbol
PLNR.

The following table sets forth for the fiscal periods indicated, the range of the high and low closing prices
for the Company’s Common Stock on the NASDAQ Global Market.

High Low

Fiscal 2007

[T R TV -t PRt 51205 $9.25

L Te T T 0 T, ¢ - A 10.74 8.24

Third QUarer . ... .. . it e e e 8.67 7.08

Fourth Quarter ... ... ... i i e i e e 8.34 6.09
Fiscal 2006

FIrst QUamer ... uivtr it i vn e nrannanens e $98 % 8.13

SecondQuarter ...........ci i e 17.59 8.23

g QUAN T . . e e 17.49 .77

Founth Quarter . ... .. i e i et im et i e e e 12.39 9.44

Holders

As of September 28, 2007, there were |30 sharcholders of record.

Dividend Policy

The Company currently intends 10 retain its eamings to support operations and, therefore, does not
anticipate paying any cash dividends at this time,

Executive Compensation

The information set forth under the caption “Executive Compensation—Equity Compensation Plan
Information™ appearing in the Proxy Statement to be used in connection with the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders on February 21, 2008, is incorporated by reference into this Report.

During the year ended Sepiember 28, 2007, the Company made restricted stock grants in the aggregate
amount of 50,000 shares of the Company's common stock to certain officers of the Company. In reliance upon
the exemption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”),
these stock grants were not regisiered under the Act.




Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the monthly cumulative total returns for the Company. the Nasdaq Stock
Market Index and an index of peer group companies selected by the Company.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Planar Systems, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Index

And A Peer Group
$250
1 A
3200- -‘-_aa"
'—-a -----
...... &
$150 | LSBT

$100
$50 -
so A1 i 1 L J
a/02 903 9/04 8/05 9/06 s/or
—8— Planar Systems, Inc. ~ =l - NASDAQ Composite ---0--- Peer Group

* $100 invested on 9/27/02 in stock or on B/30v02 In index-including reinvestment of dividands.
index calculated on month-end basis.

2/02 9/03 9/04 905 9/06 9/07
Planar Systems, Inc. ............. ... .l 10000 129.74 7254 5324 7352 4346
NASDAQ Composite . ... .....ooiiiiiviniarnreres 10000 150.59 16289 18548 19637 236.60
PeerGroUP ..ooovvirn e e e anaans 10000 125.72 1359% 81.11 8296 3533

The total cumulative return on investment {change in stock price plus reinvested dividends) for each of the
periods for the Company, the Nasdaq Stock Market index, and the peer group is based upon the stock price or
index on September 27, 2002.

The above graph compares the performance of the Company with that of the Nasdaq Stock market Index
and a group of peer companies, with the invesiment weighted on market capitalization. Companies in the peer
group are InFocus Systems, Inc., Pixelworks, Inc. and White Electronics Corporation. The past performance of
the Company's stock is not an indication of future performance. There can be no assurance that the price of the
Company’s common stock will appreciate at any particular rate or at all in future years.




Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Fiscal year
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{Dollars In thousands except per share amonnis)

Operations:

Sales ... .. e e e $272,215 $212,726 $231.832 $256,196 $251,927
Gross profit . . . .. e e 66,754 57,630 49637 59365 76,340
fncome (loss) from operations .. .............. ... (22,469 8,523 (38,2000 12,804 25,062
Netincome (10s8) ... ....civiiiiiiininiiannes (23,184) 6,280  (34,880) 9,278 15,202
Diluted net income (loss) pershare ............... $ (1338 04t § 23§ 062 3 1.4
Balance Sheet:

Working capital ..., 3 55714 % 80910 § 98,796 § 90.620 $ 73.446
ASSBLS Lttt i e e e e 263,144 245002 172,084 206,424 209,836
Long-term liabilities . . ............... ..o 34,261 14,697 4934 7,223 7.080
Shareholders’ equity ... ........ ... . ciiiiinnn, 153,887 167,575 131,238 165.528 150,839

2007 Acquisition of Runce International, Inc. In the third quaner of fiscal 2007 the Company acquired
substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of Runco Intemational, Inc. Funding for the acquisition
was provided by the Company through $14.7 million in existing cash and $22.0 million of borrowings under
the Company's credit facility.

2007 Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 the Company recorded an
approximate $7.6 million charge to the valuation allowance against U.S. deferred tax assets related 10 its
recent net losses.

2006 Acquisition of Clariry Visual Systems, Inc. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 the Company acquired
all of the outstanding capital stock of Clarity for approximately $21.9 million cash and approximately
1.8 million shares of Planar common stock.

2005 Impairment and Restructuring Charges. In the second and fourth quarters of fiscal 2005 the Company
recorded approximately $39.9 million in impairment and restructuring charges as a result of certain long-
Jived assets being impaired. primarily intangible assets and goodwiil. severance benefits related to the
termination of certain employees, and other cost reduction actions taken during the year.

The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and

Notes thereto, and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in
item 7 of this Form 10-K.,




lem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and other
sections of this Report confain statements thai are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statements are based on current expectations, estimates and
projections about the Company’s business, management’s beliefs and assumptions. Words such as “expects”,
“anticipates”, “intends”, “‘plans”, "‘believes”, “‘seeks”, “estimates” and variations of such words and other similar
expressions are intended to idemify such forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of
future performance and involve cenain risks, uncertainties, and assumptions that are difficult to predict.
Therefore, actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in such
forward-looking stalements due to numerous factors including the possibility that the acquisitions of Clarity
Visual Systems and Runco International will create difficulties in the integration of the operations, employecs,
strategies or technologies. In addition, actual results may vary materially based on changes or lower growth in
the Digital Signage and/or Command and Control display markets; the potential inability to realize expected
benefits and synergies; domestic and international business and economic conditions, changes in the flat-panel
monitor industry, difficulties in penetrating the Home Theater market; changes in customer demand or ordering
patterns, changes in the competitive environment including pricing pressures or technological changes, continued
success in technological advances, shortages of manufacturing capacities from our third party partners, final
seltlement of contractual liabilities, balance sheet changes related to updating certain estimates required for the
purchase accounting treatment of the Runco acquisition, future production variables impacting excess inventory
and other risk factors described under liem 1A. The forward-looking statements contained in this Repon speak
only as of the date on which they are made, and the Company does not underiake any obligation to update any
forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this Report. If the Company does
update one or more forward-looking statements, it should not be concluded that the Company will make
additional updates with respect thereto or with respect to other forward-looking statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is based
upon the Company's consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires the
Company 1o make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assels, liabilities, revenues and
expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, the Company evaluales
its estimates, including those related to revenue recognition, bad debts, inventories, wamranty obligations,
goodwill and intangible asset valuation, stock based compensation and income taxes. The Company bases its
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the resulis of which form the basis for making judgments about the corrying value of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions. The Company believes the following critical accounting policies and the
related judgments and estimates affect the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition. The Company’s policy is to recognize revenue for product sales when evidence of
an arrangement exists, sales price is determinable or fixed, title transfers and risk of loss has passed to the
customer, which is generally upon shipment of our products to our customers. The Company defers and
recognizes service revenue over the contractual period or as services are rendered. Some distributor agreements
allow for potential return of products and provide price protection under certain conditions within limited time
periods. Such return rights are generally limited to short-term stock rotation. The Company estimates sales
returns and price adjustments based upon historical experience and other qualitative factors. The Company
estimates expected sales returns and price adjustments and records the amounts as a reduction of revenue at the
later of the time of shipment or when the pricing decision is made. Each period, price protection is estimated
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based upon pricing decisions made and information received from distributors as to the amount of inventory they
are holding. The Company’s policies comply with the guidance provided by Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104,
Revenue Recognition, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Judgments are required in evaluating
the credit worthiness of our customers. Credit is not extended to customers and revenue is not recognized until
the Company has determined that the collection risk is minimal.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. The Company maintains allowances for estimated losses resulting from
the inability of its customers 10 make required payments. Credit limits are established through a process of
reviewing the financial history and stability of each customer. Where appropriate, the Company obtains credit
rating reports and financial statements of the customer when determining or modifying their credit limits. The
Company regularly evaluates the collectibility of its trade receivable balances based on a combination of factors,
When a customer’s account balance becomes past due, the Company initiates dialogue with the customer to
determine the cause. If it is determined that the customer will be unable to meet its financial obligation to the
Company, such as in the case of bankruptcy, deterioration in the customer’s operating results or financial
position or other material events impacting their business, the Company records a specific allowance to reduce
the related receivable to the amount the Company expects to recover.

The Company also records an allowance for all customers based on certain other factors including the length
of time the receivables are past due, the amount outstanding, and historical collection experience with customers.
The Company believes its reported allowances are adequate. However, if the financial condition of those
customers were {0 deteriorate, resulting in their inability to make payments, the Company may need to record
additional allowances which would result in additional general and administrative expenses being recorded for
the period in which such determination was made.

Inventory. The Company is exposed to a number of economic and industry factors that could result in
portions of its inventory becoming either obsolete or in excess of anticipated usage, or subject to lower of cost or
market issues. These factors include, but are not limited to, technological and regulatory changes in the Company’s
markets, the Company’s ability to meet changing customer requirements, competitive pressures in products and
prices, forecasting errors, new product introductions, quality issues with key suppliers, product phase-outs, future
customer service and repair requirements, and the availability of key components from the Company’s suppliers.
The Company’s policy is to reduce the value of inventory when conditions exist that suggest that its inventory may
be in excess of anticipated demand or is obsolete based upon its assumptions about future demand-for its products
and market conditions, The Company regularly evaluates its ability to realize the value of its inventory based on a
combination of factors including the following: historical usage rates, forecasted sales or usage, product end-of-life
dates, estimated current and future market values and new product introductions. Purchasing practices and
alternative usage avenues are explored within these processes to mitigate inventory exposure. When recorded, the
Company's adjustments are intended 1o reduce the carrying value of its inventory to its net realizable value. If
actual demand for the Company’s products deteriorates or markel conditions become less favorabie than those that
the Company projects, additional inventory adjustments may be required.

Product Warranties. The Company's products are sold with warranty provisions that require it to remedy
deficiencies in quality or performance over a specified period of time, generaily between 12 and 36 months, al no
cost to the Company’s customers. The Company’s policy is to establish warranty reserves at levels that represent
its estimate of the costs that will be incurred 1o fulfill those warranty requirements al the time that revenue is
recognized. The Company believes thal its recorded liabilities are adequate to cover its future cost of materials,
labor and overhead for the servicing of its products. If product failure rates, or material or service delivery costs
differ from the Company's estimates, its warranty liability would need to be revised accordingly.

Intungible assets. The Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Statements
of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, "Business Combinations™ and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets” on accounting for business combinations and goodwill as of the beginning of fiscal
year 2002. Accordingly, the Company no longer amortizes goodwill from acquisitions, but continues to amortize
other acquisition-related intangibles and costs.
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As required by these rules, the Company performs an impairment review of goodwill annually or earlier if
indicators of potential impairment exist. This annual impairment review was completed during the second quarter
of fiscal year 2007 for the goodwill associated with the Medical and Industrial business units and in the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2007 for the goodwill associated with the Control Room and Digital Signage business unit.
Neither analysis indicated an impairment. The impairment review was based on a discounted cash flow approach
that used estimates of future market share and revenues and costs for the relevant segments as welt as appropriate
discount rates. The estimates used were consistent with the plans and estimates that the Company uses 1o manage
the underlying businesses. In the future, if the Company fails to deliver new products for these groups, if the
products fail to gain expected market acceptance, or if market conditions in the related businesses become
unfavorable, revenue and cost forecasts may not be achieved and the Company may incur further charges for
impairment of goodwill.

For identifiable intangible assets, the Company amortizes the cost over the estimated useful life and assesses
any impairment by estimating the undiscounted future cash flows from the associated asset in accordance with
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Based upon impairment
analyses performed in fiscal 2005, an impairment charge was recorded (see additional discussion in notes | and 4
in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements). If the estimated cash flow related to these assets
decreases in the future or the useful life is shorter than originally estimated, the Company may incur further
charges for impairment of these assets. Additional impairment could result if the associated products do not sell
as expected,

Share Based Compensation Expense. On October |, 2005, the Company adopted FAS 123(R), which
requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all share based payment awards made to
our employees and directors including employee stock options, resiricted stock and employee stock purchases
related to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, based on estimated fair values. Upon adoption of FAS 123(R), the
Company maintained its method of valuation of share based awards using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model, which has historically been used for the purpose of the pro forma financial information in accordance
with FAS 123. The determination of fair value of share based payment awards on the date of grant using an
option pricing model is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding the risk-free interest rate, the
expected dividend yield, the expected option life, and expected volatility over the term of the awards. The
Company estimates volatility based on its historical stock price volatility for a period consistent with the
expected life of its options. The risk-free interest rate assumption is bosed upon observed interest rates
appropriate for the expected life of the Company's employee stock options. The dividend yield assumption is
based on the Company’s history and expectation of dividend payouts. The expected life of employee stock
options represents the weighted-average period the stock options are expected to remain outstanding based on
historical experience. As share based compensation expense recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations for fiscal 2007 is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated
forfeitures. FAS 123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Forfeitures were estimated based on histonical
and anticipated future experience. If factors change and we employ different assumptions in the application of
FAS 123(R) in future periods, the compensation expense that we record under FAS 123(R) may differ
significanily from what we have recorded in the current period.

Income Taxes. The Company records a valuation allowance when necessary to reduce its deferred tax
assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. If the Company is able to realize the deferred tax
assets in an amount in excess of its reported net amounts, an adjustment to decrease the valuation allowance
associated with deferred tax assets would decrease goodwill or increase earnings in the period such a
determination was made. Similarly, if the Company should determine that its net deferred tax assets may not be
realized to the extent reported, an adjustment to increase the valuation allowance associated with the deferred tax
assets would be charged to income in the period such a determination was made.
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BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

In September 2006, the Company completed the acquisition of Clarity Visual Systems, Inc. ("Clarity™).
Clarity is engaged in the design, development, manufacturing, marketing, distribution, suppon, and maintenance
of large-screen display systems for entertainment, business, and retail market applications. As a result of the
acquisition, the Company is able to broaden its product offerings in the specialized display market segments. The
acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly, the operations of Clarity have been included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. See Note 3-——Business Acquisitions in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements which is included in liem 8—Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
in this report.

In May 2007, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of Runco
International, Inc, (*Runco™), a supplier of premium projectors, video processors, plasma screens and LCD's to
the home theater market. As a result of the acquisition the Company is able to accelerate its reach into the market
for high-end home theater projection systems, large-format thin video displays. and front-projection screens. The
acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly, the operations of Runco have been included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. The total consideration paid was $38.9 million
which consisted of cash of $36.7 million and acquisition related costs of $2.2 million. See Note 3—Business
Acquisitions in the Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements which is included in [tem 8—Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data in this report,
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the percentage of sales of centain items in the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company. The table and the discussion below should be read in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.

Fisca! Years Ended
Sept. 28,  Sepl.29,  Sept. 30,
2007 2006 2005

BalES L e e 1000% 100.0% 100.0%
Costofsales .......... ... ... ii i 75.5 72.9 78.6
Gross profit .. .o vt i 24.5 27.1 214
Operating expenses;
Research and development, et ................... 56 4.7 4.2
Salesand marketing ........... ... L 15.0 10.0 89
General and administrative . ... .......... ... 8.0 1.8 6.8
Amontization of intangible assets . ................. 2.7 04 08
Acquisition related costs . ...... ... 0 i 0.5 — -
Impairment and restructuring charges .............. 0.6 0.2 17.2
Total Operating eXpenses .............coivveerenrnnas 32.8 23.1 379
Income {loss) fromoperations ............ ..o eannn (8.3) 4.0 (16.5)
Non-operating income (expense):
INIEIESE, MEL . . .o oottt 0.2 1.2 03
Foreign exchange, net........... ... .. oiinnan — {0.3) —
Other, net .. .ovn it e inteiaarae s e o — 0.1)
Net non-operating income {expense) ................... 0.3 0.9 0.2
[ncome (loss) before iIncome taxes ... .........oovivn..s (8.0) 49 (16.3)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ................... .5 1.8 {1.3)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . ... .. — 0.1 —
Netincome (1088) ..ot vrive oo iirarinnannen (8.5)Y% 3.0% (15.00%
Overview

Sales of $272.2 million in fiscal 2007 increased $59.5 million or 28.0% as compared to sales of $212.7
million in fiscal 2006. The increase in sales was primarily a result of increases in sales in the Control Room and
Signage and the Home Theater segments due to the acquisition of Clarity, which was completed in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2006, and he acquisition of Runco, which was completed in the third quarter of fiscal 2007. In
2007, net loss was $23.2 million and net loss per share was $1.33, as compared to ret income of $6.3 million and
net income per diluted share of $0.41 in fiscal 2006. The net loss was primarily due to increased operating
expenses due to the acquisition and integration costs associated with the acquisitions of Clarity and Runco,
including amontization of intangible assets and acquisition related costs. Additionally the loss was attributed to
$7.6 million that was recorded to the deferred tax asset valuation allowance in fiscal 2007 and to inventory
charges of $5.9 million that were incurred in fiscal 2007, as compared to $0.7 million in fiscal 2006.

in the Industrial segment, sales decreased $18.4 million to $61.6 million in 2007 from $80.0 million in
2006. The decrease in sales was primarily due to decreased sales of EL and AMLCD products due to certain
products reaching the end-of-life stage and certain OEM contracts not being renewed. These decreases were
partially offset by new design wins and customers for primarily AMLCD products. Operating income in the
Industrial segment decreased to $14.4 million in 2007 from $22.8 million in 2006. The decrease in operating
income in the Industrial segment was due to decreased sales and a decrease in the margins due to certain higher
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margin preducts reaching the end-of-life stage. The segment’s operating income was also impacted by a $1.6
million decrease in operating expense due to lower research and development costs in 2007 as compared 10 2006,
which related primasily to the retail kiosk initiatives, which were assumed by the Control Room and Digital
Signage segment in fiscal 2007. These decreases were partially offset by increases in sales and marketing
expenses related 10 increased headcounts as a result of the strategic shift (o grow the Industrial business.

In the Medical segment, sales decreased $0.9 million 10 $43.2 million in 2007 from $44.1 million in 2006.
The decrease in sales was due 10 decreased sales of tower margin non-Diagnostic Imaging medicnl monitors as
the Company continued to focus its sales efforts on Diagnostic Imaging products. Operating income in the
Medical segment decreased to $4.1 million in 2007 from $5.2 million in 2006 due primarily to the write-off of
slow-moving and end-of-life products and lower margins as a result of geographical sales mix, partially offset by
lower operating expenses.

In the Control Room and Signage segment, sales were $65.3 million in 2007 as compared to $4.7 million in
2006. All sales in this segment are a result of the Clarity acquisition which was completed in September 2006
and thercfore fiscal 2007 includes a full year of operations of the Control Room and Signage segment, while
fiscal 2006 includes approximately two weeks of operations of this segment. Operating income for this segment
was $20 thousand in fiscal 2007 as compared to $0.7 million in 2006.

In the Home Theater segment, sales were $23.6 million in 2007 as compared to $0.5 million in 2006. The
increase in sales was primarily the result of the acquisition of Runco which occurred in the third quarter of fiscal
2007, while sales in the segment in 2006 related only 1o Planar branded Home Theater products. Operating loss
for this segment was $5.5 million in fiscal 2007 as compared to operating loss of $1.0 million in fiscal 2006.

In the Commercial segment, sales decreased by $4.8 million to $78.6 million in 2007 from $83.4 millica in
2006 as revenues continued to be impacted by lower average selling prices of deskiop monitors. the effect of
which was partially offset by increases in sales from higher volumes of both deskiop monitors and specialty
displays. Sales from desktop monitors decreased approximately 14.3% while sales from specialty displays
increased 53.7% as the Commercial segment continues its efforts to shift to higher margin specialty displays such
as touch monitors and business projectors. Operating income in the Commercial segment improved to $2.8 million
in 2007 as compared to $2.2 million in 2006. This improvemeni was primarily due to higher gross margins in
fiscai 2007 related to an improved mix of higher margin touch monitors and commercial projector products. These
increases were partially offset by increased sales and marketing expenses in 2007 as compared to 2006.

Sales

Sales of $272.2 million in 2007 increased $59.5 million or 28.0% as compared to sales of $212.7 millien in
2006. The increase in sales was due primarily to increases in the Control Room and Signage and Home Theater
segments due to the acquisitions of Clarity and Runco. Clarity was acquired in September 2006 and Runco was
acquired in May 2007; neither segment had subsiantial operations in 2006. Sales in the Commercial segment
decreased $4.8 million or 5.9% 10 $78.6 million in 2007 from $83.4 militon in 2006. This decrease in
Commercial segment sales resulted from decreases in average selling prices for desktop monitors and specialty
display products, which were partiatly offset by increases in volumes sold for both classes of products. Sales
from desktop monitors decreased [4.3% to $62.6 million in 2007 from $73.1 million in 2006. The decrcase was
due to an approximate 19.5% decrease in average selling prices which was partially offset by an approximate
5.2% increase in volumes sold. Sales from specialty displays increased approximately 53.7% from 2006 10 2007
due 10 an approximate 55.3% increase in volumes, which were partially offset by an approximate 1.6% decrease
in average selling price. Specialty display sales represented approximately 20.3% of the segment’s revenues in
2007, as compared to 12.4% in 2006, reflecting the Company’s strategic shift 1o higher margin specialty displays
in this segment. An oversupply of desktop monitor products continued to exist throughout the industry
throughout most of 2005, 2006, and 2007 primarily due to recently constructed component manufacturing
operations, which saturated the marke1r with components, thereby driving down the costs of the components and

-
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allowing the Company and its competitors to build products for lower costs. When these products entered the
market, the saturation exerted downward pressure on prices of the Company’s and its competitor’s products, as
cusiomers expected lower prices due to lower components €osts.

Sales in the Industrial segmeni decreased $18.4 million or 23.0% to $61.6 million in 2007 from
$80.0 million in 2006. The decrease in sales was primarily due to decreased sales of both EL and AMLCD
products which were partially offset by increases in sales of LCD products. Sales of EL and AMLCD products
decreased due to certain products reaching the end-of-life stage in previous periods, from which lower revenues
resulted as compared to the prior year, and certain OEM contracts not being renewed. Sales of LCD products
increased as a result of new design wins. Sales in the Medical segment decreased $0.9 million 10 $43.2 million in
2007 from $44.]1 million in 2006. The decrease is the result of the Company selling reduced volumes of lower
margin patient monitors, offset by increases in sales of the company’s Diagnostic Imaging products, in
conjunction with the company's shift in focus toward higher margin Diagnostic Imaging products.

Sales of $212.7 million in 2006 decreased $19.1 million or 8.2% as compared to sales of $231.8 million in
2005. The decrease in sales was due to lower sales in the Commercial and Industrial segments. Sales in the
Commercial scgment decreased $18.7 million or 18.3% to $83.4 million in 2006 from $102.2 million in 2005.
This decrease in the Commercial segment was due to lower sales volume of the Commercial segment products
and lower overall selling prices of such products. Sales volume decreased by 3.0%. which resulted in a
$2.5 million decrease in revenue. Average selling prices decreased by 12.0% resulting in a $12.7 million
decrease in revenue. Sales in the Industrial segment decreased $5.1 million or 6.0% to $80.0 million in 2006
from $85.2 million in 2005, due primarily to a decrease in sales of AMLCD products. Sales in the Medical
segment decreased $0.4 million or 1.0% to $44.1 million in 2006 from $44.5 million in 2005. This decrease was
due to lower sales of non-Diagnostic Imaging products as the Company shified its sales focus primarily toward
Diagnostic Imaging products in 2006.

Sales outside the United States increased by 55.5% to $74.2 million in 2007 as compared to $47.7 million
recorded in 2006, and increased by 14.4% in 2006 as compared to $41.7 million recorded in 2005. In fiscal 2007 the
increase in intenational sales was primarily due 1o sales of Command and Control products outside of the United
States which were approximately $27.9 million in fiscal 2007; there was not a high volume of Command and
Control products sold outside of the United States in fiscal 2006 as these additional product sales were the result of
the Company’s acquisition of Clarity. Additional increases in intemational saies were due to intemmational sales of
Diagnostic imaging products as the Company continues to focus on increasing sales of these products worldwide. In
fiscal 2006, the increase in international sales was due to increased sales of Diagnostic Imaging products and
products based on EL technology in the Industrial and Medical segments. As a percentage of total sales,
international sales were 27.2% in 2007, 22.4% in 2006, and 18.0% in 2005. The fluctuations from 2006 10 2007
were primarily due to the acquisition of Clarity, which has historically had a higher mix of international sales than
Planar has historically experienced. Following the acquisition, the Control Room and Digital Signage continued to
sell to existing and new international customers, increasing the Company’s overal) international sales mix. The
fluctuations from 2005 to 2006 were primarily caused by the amount of Commercial segment revenue in the sales
mix. as Commercial segment sales are almost entirely in North America.

Gross Profit

Gross profit as a percentage of sales decreased to 24.5% in 2007 as compared to 27. 196 in 2006. Total gross
profit increased $9.1 miltion to $66.8 million in 2007 as compared to $57.6 million in 2006. The increase in
margin is primarily due to a full year’s operation of the Control Room and Signage segment in 2007 and
increased margin from the Home Theater segment as & result of the acquisition of Runco in May 2007, and was
partially offset by decreases in margins in the Medical and Industrial segments. The decreases in these segments
resulted primarily from inventory charges of $2.7 million related to slow maving and end-of-life products in
these segments. These charges included $0.7 million in the second quarter of fiscal 2007 and $1.4 million in the
fourth quarter for these segmenis. The second quarter write-offs were primarily related to safety stock of custom
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glass in the Medical segment that the segment no longer anlicipates using. The fourth quarter write-offs were due
10 the determination that it is unlikely that certain inventory items will be used, based on future sales projections
and historical usage.

Gross margins as a percentage of sales increased to 27.1% in 2006 as compared to 21.4% in 2005 due to
stronger product margins in each of the Company's business segmenis and a better mix of higher margin
Industrial and Medical products sales relative to Commercial product sales. The increase in gross margin from
2005 to 2006 was also partially due 1o the write-off of inventory due to the existence of excess inventory and
vendor quality issues in 2005.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses of $15.3 million in 2007 increased $5.4 million or 54.0% from $9.9
million in 2006. The increase was primarily due to the establishment of the Control Room and Digital Signage
and Home Theater segments, which did not have significant expenses in 2006. These increases were offset by
decreases in research and development expenses for the Medical and Industrial segments. In the Medical segment
research and development expenses decreased due to the conclusion of various development programs that were
initiated in previous years as the segment invested in praduct improvements. Research and Development in the
Industrial segment decreased primarily due 10 the termination of certain projects that were in process prior to the
Clarity acquisition. Prior to the acquisition of Clarity in 2006 the Industrial segment had invested in a project to
internally develop retail kiosk products. These investments were assumed by the Control Room and Digital
Signage segment when the Company acquired Clarity. No additional amounts were incurred by the Industrial
segment in fiscal 2007 related to these projects, contributing to the decrease in rescarch and development
expense in 2007. In addition, overall expense decreased in 2007 due to lower performance compensation as
compared to 2006. In 2006 rescarch and development expenses of $9.9 million increased $0.1 million or 0.9%
from $9.8 million in 2005. The increase was primarily due 1o higher performance and share based compensation
in 2006 compared to 2005. The increase was also due to increased spending for product devetopment for the
Industrial business segment. The increases were offset by decreases in research due to lower headcoum and
decreases in business development costs in 2006 compared 2005. As a percentage of sales, research and
development expenses increased to 5.6% in 2007 compared to 4.7% in 2006 and 4.2% in 2005 due (o the same
reasons noted above.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses increased $19.5 miilion or 92.4% to $40.7 million in 2007 from $21.2 million
in 2006. The increase was primarily due to costs refated to the Control Room and Digital Signage and the Home
Theater segments, which did not have significant expenses in 2006. The increase in sales and marketing expenses
was also due to increases in these expenses in both the Industrial and Commercial segments. Increases in the
Industrial segment were primarily related to increased headcount to assist in the segment’s efforts to drive
revenue growth. In the Commercial segment, the increase in sales and marketing expense was also due to
increased headcount, partially offset by reduced performance compensation. Additionally. the segment’s sales
and marketing expenses increased in 2007 as compared to 2006 due to marketing programs related o the addition
of new resellers and distributors and also due to the introduction of two new product lines in 2007. Sales and
marketing expenses for the Medical segment decreased in 2007 as compared to 2006 primarily due to a decrease
in the number of new products during the year as well as an increased effort to contro) costs. The decrease is also
due to lower performance compensation in 2007 as compared 1o 2006. As a percentage of sales, sales and
marketing expenses increased 1o 15.0% in 2007 as compared to 10.0% in 2006. The increase was primarily due
to sales and markeling costs increasing a1 a faster rate than sales due to the new Control Room and Digital
Signage and Home Theater segments which are related to the acquisitions of Clarity and Runco, respectively.
The acquired companies’ business models have historically had higher sales and marketing costs, as a percentage
of sales, than Planar has experienced in the Industrial, Medical, and Commercial segments and the integration of
the Clarity and Runco business models resulted in an overall higher amount of sales and marketing expense. as a
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percent of sales, in 2007 as compared 1o 2006. Sales and marketing expenses increased $0.7 million or 3.2% to
$21.2 million in 2006 from $20.5 million in 2005. The increase was primarily due to higher performance and
share based compensation, and increased spending in the Industrial segment as compared to 2005. In addition,
the increase was due to new costs incurred in 2006 related 10 the new businesses for Command and Control and
Digita) Signage and Home Theater. The increases were offset by decreases in sales and marketing expenses in
the Medical segment and decreases in general spending as a result of cost reduction actions implemented in 2005.
As a percentage of sales, sales and markeling expenses increased to 10.0% in 2006 as compared to 8.9% in 2005.
The increase in sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of sales was primarily due to the overall decline in
sales.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses increased $5.1 million or 30.8% 10 $21.6 million in 2007 from $16.5
million in 2006. The increase in general and administrative expenses was primarily due to the increased general
and administrative functions required as a result of the acquisition of Clarity in late 2006 and the acquisition of
Runco in the third quarter of 2007. As a percentage of sales, gencral and administrative expenses increased to
7.9% in 2007 from 7.8% in 2006. The slight increase in general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
sales was primarily due to the increase in these costs due to the acquisitions. These increases were partially offset
by decreases in performance compensation and share based compensation expense in 2007 as compared to 2006.
Genera) and administrative expenses increased $0.6 million or 4.3% 10 $16.5 million in 2006 from $15.9 million
in 2005. The increase in general and administrative expense was primarily due to higher performance and share
based compensation expense in 2006 as compared to 2005, offset by decreases in general and administrative
expenses which occurred as a result of cost reduction actions implemented in 2005. As a percentage of sales,
general and administrative expenses increased o 7.8% in 2006 from 6,8% in 2005, The increase in general and
administralive expenses as a percentage of sales was primarily due 1o the overall decline in sales.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Expenses for the amonization of intangible assets increased to $7.4 million in 2007 from $0.9 million in
2006 and $1.7 million in 2005. The increase in the current year is due primarily to the amortization of intangible
assets recorded in conjunction with the acquisition of Clarity in the founh quarter of 2006 and the amortization of
certain intangible assets recorded in conjunction with the acquisition of Runco in the third quanter of 2007.

Acquisition related costs

Acquisition related costs primarily consist of incremental costs associated with the acquisitions of Clarity
and Runco which were not included in the purchase consideration or not capitalizable as property, plant or
equipment, which resulted directly from the acquisition. These costs increased to $2.6 million in 2007 from $0.1
million in 2006.

Impairment and Restructuring Charges
2005 Impairment and Severance Charges

During the second quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company determined that certain long-lived assets were
impaired, and therefore recorded a $3.4 million charge to reduce these assets to fair value. This determination
was based on a review of operational results for certain product lines and shifts in strategic direction for certain
company activities. This impairment charge includes $1.7 million for idemifiable intangible asseis related to
developed technology, for which the underlying undiscounted cash flows did not support the carrying value of
the assets, $0.7 million of capitalized costs associated with a discontinued information technology systems
development effort, and $1.1 million of tooling for products that were abandoned, discontinued or for which the
undiscounted cash flows did not suppon the asset’s carrying value, Fair value was determined based on a cash
flow analysis for each asset that was determined to be impaired.
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During the second quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company adopted a cost reduction plan, including the
termination of employment of certain employees who performed primarily sales, marketing and administrative
functions. Restructuring charges of $1.8 million, primarily related 10 severance benefits, were recorded pursuant
to this plan. During the fourth quarner of fiscal 2005, the Company determined that $0.4 million of the $1.8
million restructuring charges recorded in the second quarier of fiscal 2005 was not required. The original
estimates changed due to employment severance costs being less than originally anticipated as employees filled
vacant positions within the company.

During the fourth quanter of fiscal 2005, the Company determined that goodwill associated with the Medical
segment and the value of certain long-lived assets was impaired, and therefore recorded a $33.9 million charge to
reduce these assets to fair value. This impairment charge includes $33.3 million of goodwill related to the
acquisition of DOME Imaging Systems, and $0.6 million of intangible assets related to developed analog
technology, for which the underlying undiscounted cash flows did not suppon the carrying value of the assels.
The goodwill impairment charge was triggered by Medical segment operating results trending differently than
originally forecasted during the Company's annual impairment test conducted during the second quarter of 2005,
The developed technology write-down was triggered by an end-of-life decision made in the fourth quarter of
2005 for all Medical segment analog producis.

The goodwill impairment was calculated as the difference between the implied fair value of goodwill and
the carrying value of goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill was calculated as the difference between the
fair value of the Medical segment on the date of valvaiion in the fourth quaner of 2005. as determined by a third-
party valuation service, which used assumplions provided by management, and the fair value of the net assets of
the Medical segment, excluding goodwill.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the employment of certain employees who performed primarily
sales and administrative functions, including the Company’s former Chief Executive Officer, were 1erminated.
Restructuring charges of $1.3 million, primanly related to severance benefits, were recorded at that time,
including $56,000 of charges related to the acceleration of stock options.

2006 Severance Charges

Impairment and restructuring charges in 2006 of $0.5 million include charges of $0.3 million resulting from
the termination of the Company's former Chief Operating Officer, related to severance benefits and the
acceleration of stock awards, and charges of $0.2 million related to the termination of employment of certain
employees who performed manufacturing functions, which relaie primarily 1o severance benefis.

2007 Impairment and Restructuring Charges

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company adopted a cost reduction plan, including lermination of
employment of certain employees who performed primarily engineering, sales, marketing and administrative
functions. Restructuring charges of $1.6 million include approximatety $1.5 million related to severance benefits
and $0.1 million for tooling of a product line that was discontinued.

These charges are recorded as impairment and restructuring charges in the Consclidated Statement of
Operations,

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $40.1 million or 81.7% 10 $89.2 million in 2007 from $49.1 million in 2006.
The increase was primarily due to increased research and development, sales and marketing, general and
administrative and integration costs related to the acquisitions of Clarity and Runco. Operating expenses also
increased due to the amortization in 2007 of intangible assets recorded as a result of the Clarity and Runco
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acquisitions and also due 1o impairment and restructuring charges recorded in the first quarter of fiscal 2007, As
a percentage of sales, operating expenses increased to 32.8% in 2007 from 23.1% in 2006 due primarily to the
acquisitions of Clarity and Runco. Operating expenses decreased $38.7 million or 44.1% to $49.1 million in 2006
from $87.8 million in 2003. The decrease was primarily due to the impairment and restructuririg charges incurred
in 2005. As a percentage of sales, operaling expenses decreased to 23.1% in 2006 from 37.9% in 2005.

Nen-operating Income and Expense

Non-operating income and expense includes interest income on cash and investments, interest expense, net
foreign currency exchange gain or loss and other income or expenses. In fiscal 2007, net interest income
decreased $1.9 million to $0.6 million, as compared to $2.6 million in 2006. The decrease was due to a $1.1
million decrease in interest earnings as a result of overall lower cash balances in 2007 as compared to 2006 due
to the cash paid for the Clarity and Runco acquisitions, and a $0.8 million increase in interest expense due to
increased borrowings as a result of the Runco acquisition. In fiscal 2006, net interest income was $2.6 million. as
compared to $0.7 million in 2005. The increase in net interest income in 2006 as compared to 2005 was due 10
higher cash balances eaming interest, higher overall interest rates as compared to the same periods in the prior
year, and lower interest expense on decreased borrowings.

Foreign currency exchange gains and losses are related 1o timing differences in the receipt and payment of
funds in various currencies and the conversion of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable denominated in
foreign currencies to the applicable functional currency. Foreign currency exchange gains and losses amounted to
a net loss of $0.2 million in 2007, a net loss of $0.7 million in 2006, and a net gain of $0.1 million in 2003.

The Company currently realizes approximalely 27% of its revenue outside the United States. The functional
currency of the Company’s primary foreign subsidiaries is the Euro which must be translated to U.S. Dollars for
consolidation. The Company hedges its Euro exposure with foreign exchange forward contracts. The Company
believes that this hedging mitigates the risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes

The Company recorded a tax provision of $1.5 million in fiscal 2007, a provision of $3.9 million in fiscal
2006, and a tax benefit of $2.9 million in fiscal 2005. For 2007, the differences between the effective tax rate and
the federal statutory rate were due mainly to a $7.6 million charge to the valvation allowance against U.S.
deferred tax assets and certain foreign deferred tax assets, based on the Company's recent three-year cumulative
losses. For 2006, the differences between the effective tax rate and the federal statutory rate were due to
permanent differences resulting from deemed distributions of income currently reportable in the U.S. from
foreign subsidiaries, state income taxes, federal and state settlements, and the effects of the Company’s foreign
tax rates. For fiscal 2005, the differences between the effective tax rate and the federal statutory rate were due to
permanent differences resulting from goodwill impairment, state income taxes, federal and state settlements,
changes in the valuation allowance and the effects of the Company’s foreign tax rates,

Net Income (Loss)

In 2007, net loss was $23.2 million or $1.33 per share. In 2006, net income was $6.3 million or $0.41 per
diluted share. In 2005, net loss was $34.9 million or $2.37 per share.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Net cash used in operating activities was $13.4 million in 2007 while cash provided by operating activities
was $11.7 million, and $37.7 million, in fiscal years 2006 and 2005, respectively. Net cash used in operations in

2007 primarily relates 1o the loss reported, increases in accounts receivable, other current assets, and inventory,
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and decreases in accounts payable and deferred revenue, offset by cash provided by lease incemives and
increases in cumrent liabilities. Depreciation, amortization, share based compensation, and excess tax benefits
from share based compensation do not require a current cash outlay. Net cash provided by operations in 2006
primarily relates to net income, and non-cash charges for depreciation and amonization, impairment and
restructuring charges, deferred 1axes, share based compensation, offset by the excess tax benefit of share based
compensation, an increase in inventory and a decrease in accounts payable. Net cash provided by operations in
2005 was primarily due to non-cash charges greater than the net loss, decreases in accounts receivable and
inventories, and increases in accounts payable and deferred revenue, offset by an increase in deferred taxes and a
decrease in other current liabilities.

Working capital decreased $25.2 million 10 $55.7 million a1 September 28, 2007 from $80.9 mitlion at
September 29, 2006. Current assets decreased $12.9 million in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006. Cash
decreased by $33.0 million, accounts receivable increased $11.0 million, and inventories increased $9.5 million,
primarily as a result of the accounts receivable and inventory balances acquired in the acquisition of Runco as
well as due to overall increased sales in 2007 and the timing of the receipt of payments from customers. Current
lizbilities increased $12.3 million in fiscal 2007 as compared 1o fiscal 2006 due primarily to the increase in
accounts payable and other current liabilities. Accounts payable increased $6.0 million due to the acquisition of
Runco and the timing of payments. Other current liabilities increased $7.8 million in fiscal 2007 primarily due to
a valuation allowance recorded related to deferred tax assets in the United Stales.

Additions to plant and equipment were $7.3 million, $1.5 million, and $3.4 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively. In 2007, expenditures for plant and equipment primarily related to leasehold improvements on
facilities as well as plant and equipment acquired in the acquisition of Runco. In 2006, expenditures for plant and
equipment primarily related 10 new computer hardware and software. In 2005, expenditures for plant and
equipment primarily related 10 new software applications and various manufacturing equipment that enable
efficiency improvements and support the Company’s growth. Cash paid for the Runco acquisition was $36.7
million.

The Company’s current credit agreement, as amended, allows for borrowing up to half of the net value of its
domestic inventory, accounts receivable, and propeny, plant and equipment. The agreement allows for 2
maximum borrowing capacity of $32.5 million. expires on December 1, 2008, and is secured by substantially all
assets of the Company. The interest rates can fluctuate quarterty based upon the actual fixed charge coverage
ratio and the LIBOR rate. As of September 28, 2007, there was $23 million outstanding, with no borrowings
outstanding as of September 29, 2006 and September 30, 2005. The weighted average interest rate for the year-
ending September 28, 2007 was 7.4%. The agreement contained cenain financial covenants, including a
minimum EBITDA covenani. with which the Company was not in compliance as of September 28, 2007. In
December 2007 the Company received a waiver for the fourth quanier of 2007 violation of the minimum
EBITDA covenant and entered into o fourth amendment to the credit agreement, including the following
financial covenants: a fixed charge coverage ratio, a collateral coverage ratio, and minimum net worth. The
fourth amendment to the credit agreement also deleted the previously existing minimum EBITDA covenant,
changed the definition of and reset the fixed charge coverage ratio covenant. The amendment reduces the amount
of the overall commitment by $2.5 million at quarterly intervals on April 1, 2008, July 1, 2008 and October 1.
2008. While the Company belicves it will be in compliance with all the covenants through the term of the
agreement, as amended, failure to comply with all applicable covenants, or to obiain waivers therefore, would
result in an event of default and could result in the acceleration of the Company’s debt, which in turn could lead
10 the inability to pay debis and the loss of control of certain assets. In addition, the agreement includes a
subjective acceleration clause which could be invoked by the lender. Given the recent covenant violation, it is
reasonably possible that the lender could invoke this clause and accelferute repayment of amounts due under the
facility. Management does not believe that this is probable, but if this event occurred or any other covenant
violation were not waived. the Company would pursue other sources of financing, potentially including more
costly alternatives, or the disposal of centain assets.
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The Company enicred into a capital lease during 2002 for leaschold improvements in new offices. As a
result of the acquisition of Clarity Visual Systems, Inc., the Company assumed its existing capital leases. As of
September 28, 2007 the total minimum lease payments are $0.5 million which are payable over two years. The
Company believes its existing cash and investments, together with cash generated from operations and existing
borrowing capabilities will be sufficient to meet cash requirements for the foreseeable future.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The Company is contractually obligated to make the following paymenis as of September 28, 2007:

Payments due by period
Less than 1.3 3.5 More than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(im thousands)

Capital leases (including interest} . ...................... $ 505 % 348 § 157 § — $ —
Purchase obligations ............... ... 38,647 38,647 — — —
Operating [€ases . ... ... i, 23,207 6,132 7965 6,104 3,006
Total contractual obligations .................. ... ..., $62,359 $45,127 $8,122 $6,104 $3,006

QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The 1able below presents unaudited consolidated financial results for cach quarter in the two-year period
ended September 28, 2007. The Company believes that all necessary adjustments have been included to present
fairly the quarterly information when read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
operating results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for any future
period.

Three months ended

Sept. 28, Jun.29, Mar.30, Dec.29, Sepl.29, Jun. 30, Mar.30, Dec. 30,
2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006 2006 2005

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Sales ...t $ 84,516 $68,200 $54,58% $64,909 $53,332 349,365 $52,880 $57.149
Grossprofit .............coiuuns 17,578 17,911 12,849 18416 15064 13330 14944 14292
Income (loss) from operations . ... .. (7,058) (5.851) (6,573) (2,988) 2,122 2,123 2294 10984
Income {loss) before cumulative

effect of accounting change ...... (13,793) (4,118) (3,887) (1,386} 1,355 1,668 2,000 1459
Net income (loss)!- ............... (13,793) (4,118) (3.887) (1.386) 1.153 1.668 2,000 1459

Diluted income (loss) per share
before cumulative effect of

accounting change ............. $ (0.79)$ (0.24)$ (0.22)$ (0.08)$ 009 % 011 & 0138 010
Average shares
outstanding-diluted ............ 17,543 17477 17336 17,133 15747 15,635 15469 14,845

1. Fourth Quarter 2007 Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 the

Company recorded a $7.6 million charge to the valuation allowance against U.S. deferred tax assets related
to its recent net losses.
Third Quarter 2007 Acquisition of Runco International, Inc. In the third quarter of fiscal 2007 the Company
acquired substantially al) of the assets and certain liabilities of Runco Internatienal, Inc. Funding for the
acquisition was provided by the Company through $14.7 million in existing cash and $22.0 million of
borrowings under the Company's credit facility.

First Quarter 2007 Restructuring. In the first quarter of fiscal 2007 the Company recorded a cost reduction
plan, including the termination of 29 employees who performed primarily engineering, sales, marketing, and
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administrative functions. Restructuring charges of approximately $1.5 million, primarily related to
severance benefits, were recorded pursuant to this plan,

Fourth Quarter 2006 acquisition of Clarity Visual Systems, Inc. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 the
Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Clarity for approximately $21.9 million cash and
approximately 1.8 million shares of Planar common stock.

Itern 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to its investment
portfolio and short-term and long-term debt obligations. The Company mitigates its risk by diversifying its
investments among high-credit-quality securities in accordance with the Company’s investment policy.

The Company believes that its net income or cash flow exposure relating to rate changes for short-term and
long-term debt obligations are not material. The Company primarily enters into debt obligations to support
acquisitions, capital expenditures and working capital needs. The Company does not hedge any interest rate
exposures,

Interest expense is affected by the general level of U. S. interest rates andfor LIBOR. Increases in inicrest
expense resulting from an increase in interest rates would be at least partially offset by a corresponding increase
in interest eamed on the Company's investments.

The Euro is the functional currency of the Company’s subsidiaries in Finland and France. The Company
enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge certain balance sheet exposures and intercompany
balances against future movements in the U.S. Dollar to Euro exchange rate. The forward exchange contracts are
settled and renewed on a monthly basis in order to maintain a balance between the balance sheet exposures and
the contract amounts. At September 28, 2007 the Company maintained open contracts of $9 million and €2.5
million. If rates shifted dramatically, the Company believes it would not be matenally impacted. In addition, the
Company does maintain cash balances denominated in currencies other than the U. 8. Dollar. If foreign exchange
rates were to weaken against the U. S. Dollar, the Company believes that the fair value of these foreign currency
amounts would not decline by a material amount.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Planar Systems, lnc. and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Planar Systems. Inc. and subsidiaries as
of Sepiember 28, 2007 and September 29, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
sharcholders® equity and comprehensive income (Joss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended September 28, 2007. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidaled financial statements
based upon our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We belicve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stalements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Planar Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 28, 2007 and September 29, 2006,
and the resulis of their operations, and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
September 28, 2007 in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 16 to the consolidated financial stalements, in the year ended September 28, 2007,
Planar Sysiems, Inc. adopted SEC staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 108, “Considering the Effect of Prior
Year Misstatements When Quantifying Misstatlements in the Current Year Financial Statements.” As discussed in
Note 5 and Note | 1o the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for
asset retirement obligations and share based payment awards, respectively, in 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Planar Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial
reporting as of September 28. 2007, based on criteria established in /nternal Control—Integrated Framework.
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO}), and our repon
dated December 12, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s intermnal
control over financial reporting.

fs/ KPMG LLP

Portland, Oregon
December 12, 2007
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PLANAR SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Sept. 28,  SepL. 29,

2007 2006
(In thousands, cxcepl
share data)
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cashandcashequivalents ........ ... ... . i i i i, 3 15287 3 48318

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,534 at 2007 and
$1,438 at 2006 (NOLE 2) . .. v ittt e e et are b 42,915 31,961
[ 115 59,028 49,524
Othercurrentassets (Note 10) ... ... ... ottt 13,480 13,837
Total CUMENL @S5E1S . . .. ..ottt ittt ittt et criiartarraronnans 130,710 143,640
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 6) .. ...... ... .. ... ... . i 14,918 10,880
GoodWill (NOLE 3) Lttt i e i s e e e e e 67,429 51,996
Intangible assets, net (Nole 3) .. ... . o e 44,278 32,465
Other assets (Note [0 .. ... .. i i e i et e 5,809 6,02)

$263,144 $245,002

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable ... ... . . e e e e $ 31,712 § 25674
Current portion of capital leases (NOte 7) ...t iiiiiiaas 324 493
Dl eITed EVENE L ... e e 4,888 6,326
Other current liabilities (Notes 4, 8and 10) ....... ... i 38,072 30,237
Totabcurrent Habilities . ... ... v eivtt ittt iennanrnnan 74,996 62,730
Note Payable {(NOte 7) .. ..o i e i e 23,000 —
Capital leases, less current portion (Note 7) . ..o o ittt i it e 152 1,044
Other long-term liabilities (Notes 7and 10) ..o 11,109 13,653
Total liabilities . ... .. 0ot e e e 109,257 77.427
Sharcholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized 10,000,000 shares, no shares issued . .. .. —_ —
Common stock, no par value. Authorized 30,000,000 shares; 17,578,404 and
17,109,293 issued shares at 2007 and 2006, respectively ............... ... ... 167,967 161,538
Retained amings .. ... ... 0 ey e ittt e e e e {13,450) 10,270
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (Note 15) .......... ... ...ty (630  (4,233)
Total shareholders™ equity ... ... ... v i i e 153,887 167,575

$263,144 $245,002

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial staternents.
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PLANAR SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal year ended

Sept. 28,  Sept. 29,  Sept. 3D,
2007 2006 2005

(In thousands, except per
share amounts)

L S $272.215 $212,7126 $231.832
Cost O SalES . ..o e e e 205,461 155096 182,195
GrOSS PrOfIl . L o vt e e e 66,754 57,630 49,637
Operating expenses:
Research and development, net .. ................. ... oo, 15,276 9,920 9,829
Selesand marketing ....... ... ... i 40,709 21,158 20,497
General and administrative . .. ... .. . i e e 21,639 16,543 15,858
Amontization of intangible assets ... ....... ... i i i e 7.402 906 1,740
Acquisitionrelated costs . ............ i i 2,512 77 —
Impairment and restructuring charges (Noted) ..................... 1,625 503 39913
Total operating eXpenses . ... .. ... ...ooiineeerennannaaean. 80223 49107 87,837
Income (loss) fromoperations . ... ... ... . ... ... i (22,469) 8,523  {38,200)
Non-operating income {expense):
1T (2 QT e o -3 1,730 2,826 1,020
INIerest eXPenSe ... ... .. it a e (1,096) {262) (345)
Foreign exchange. net .............. .. .. .. i, {152) (659) 104
L 117 S T 262 (49} (405)
Net non-operaling income {expense) . ..............ccoivivann 744 1,856 374
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting
change .. ... ... e (21,725) 10379  (37.,826)
Provision (benefit) for incometaxes(Note 10) . ............ .. ... .. .0 1,459 3,807 (2.946)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change . ............. {23.184) 6,482  (34,880)
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes (Note 5) ...... — (202) —
NEtinCOME (L0SS) . oo ittt et v e e st eia e rneae e $(23.184) § 6,280 $(34.880)
Income (loss) per share before cumulative effect of accounting change
BasiC ... .. e e $ (3x % 043 & (2.37)
0 LV = PP $ (31 % 042 8 (2.3
Net income (loss) per share
Basit . et e e 5 (133% 041 8 (237
Diluted . ... . e e e e $ (133 % 041 $ (237
Average shares outstanding—basic ...... ... ... ... . .ol 17,374 15,166 14,6599
Average shares outstanding—diluted _..... ... ... ... .. . il 17,374 15,437 14,699

See accompanying notes o consolidated financial statements,

37




PLANAR SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiseal year ended
Sept.28,  Sept,29,  Sept. 3,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Netineome (1085) ... vuirt ettt $(23,184) $ 6,280 $(34,880)
Adjusiments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided (used in}) by

operating activities

Depreciation and amortization ... ... ... ..ot 12,300 7,630 8,724
Cumulative effect of adoption of new accounting principle ............ — 334 -
Impairment and restructuring charges ...........ocoiiir oot 1,625 503 39913
I 15 To3arors T, < o SRR O O (313) 1,209 (2,264)
Stock-based compensation .. ... ..o i 4,446 3,376 349
Excess tax benefit of share based compensation . .................... - (719 —
Lease INCENIIVES ..\ oot er it aa e 1,768 — —
{Gain) loss On INVESIMENIS, NEL . ... ...ttt iareianienns — - 390
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, net .......... ... ..o (6,207) 372 8,752
{Increase) decrease in iNVENLOMES . .......coviiioriiinereenn ey (1,022) (2,653 15555
{(Increase) decrease in othercurrent assels . .......ovv i iri ot (633) (255) 297
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable ...l (2,607 {4.978) 1,568
Increase {decrease) indeferredrevenue . ............. ... (821) 184 1,209
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities ................... ..., 1,262 403 (1,904)
Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities ................... ..., (13,386) 11,686 37,709
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment .........ccoarn it (7.296) (1.464) (3.405)
Cash paid for acquisition, net of cash received .............. ... ..o, (38.331) (19837 —
Maturity {purchase) of short-term investments .................c.oo .l — 13,000  (13,000)
Proceeds from sale of INVESIMENL . ... oottt i e ia e — — 497
Increase in JONE (BMM ASSEIS ...\ v vt uvtver v m et sstaes (318) (4} (134)
Net cash used in invesling activities .. ... ... e iairinnniiiniaenns (45945  (8,322) (16,042)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments of long-term debt and capital lease obligations .................. (536) (11,193 (192)
Proceeds from long-termdebt ....... ... ... i 23,000 - —
Value of shares withheld fortax lability ... ... .o oo (223) (916) _—
Excess tax benefit of stock based compensation ....................o.00n — 719 —
Net proceeds from issuance of capital stock ..ot 1,983 3,151 1,004
Nei cash provided by (used in) financing activities . ...................... 24.224 (8.239) 812
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents .............. 2,076 1,007 {559)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ..................... (33,031) (3,867 21920
Cash and cash equivalents a1 beginning of period .................. ... 48318 52,185  30.265
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period ... ... oot $ 15287 $48318 $ 52,185

Supplemental cash flow disclosure
Issuance of commen stock, and stock options in connection with business

BCQUISIHON .. .ottt it e i e e $ — $2193 § —
Cash paid forinterest ........ ..ot i 617 262 345
Cash paid for InCOME tAXES ... ... ... iiiiiiiinrrinnenane i, 1,268 1,920 1,085

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PLANAR SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
{Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts, and share data)

Accumulated

Oth Total
Common Stock Retained Comprel::nslve Sharc:olders'
Shares Amount  Earnings  Income (Loss) Equity
BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 24,2004 .. ....... 14,638,302 130,924 39,786 (5.182) 165,528
Components of compreheasive income (loss)
(Note 15):
Netloss ...oovviiiiii ity — —  (34,880) — (34,880)
Currency translation adjustment ........ — - — (763) (763)
Total comprehensive loss . ......... (35.643)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock .. ... 125,128 1,061 — — 1,061
Stock based compensation ., ............... 292 — — 292
BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30,2005......... 14,763,430  132.277 4,906 (5.945) 131,238
Components of comprehensive income (loss)
(Note 15):
Netincome .. ..vvvveenvniaianranins —_ — 6,280 — 6,280
Currency translation adjustment ........ — — — 1,712 1,712
Total comprehensive income . ...... 7,992
Value of shares withheld for tax liability ..... 62,147 — 916) -— {916)
Proceeds from issuance of commton stock . .. .. 594,122 3151 — — 3,151
Stock issued for acquisition ............ ..., 1,813,888 18,230 — — 18,230
Fair value of assumed stock options ......... — 3,733 — — 3.733
Stock based compensation ............ .00 -- — 3,428 — — 3,428
Tax benefit of stock options exercised ....... —_ 719 — — 719
BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 29,2006......... 17,109,293 $161,538 § 10,270 $(4,233) $167,575
Cumulative effect of adjustment resulting from
the adoption of SAB 108 (Note 16): ....... — — (313) — (313)
Components of comprehensive income (loss)
(Note 15):
Netloss .......cooviiiieneaaaa.t, — —  (23,184) — (23,184)
Currency translation adjustment ........ — — — 3,603 3,603
Total comprehensive loss . ... ...... (19,581)
Value of shares withheld for tax liability ..... (28,703) —_ (223) _ (223)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ... .. 497,814 1,983 — — 1,83
Stock based compensation . ....... ... — 4,446 — — 4,446
BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 28,2007 ......... 17,578,404 $167,967 $(13450) § (630) $153,887

See accompanying notes (¢ consolidated financial stalements.
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PLANAR SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THREE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 28, 2007
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts, and share data)

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Operations

Planar Systems, Inc. was incorporated on April 27, 1983 and commenced operations in June 1983. Planar
Systems, Inc., and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company™) are engaged in developing,
manufacturing and marketing electronic display products and systems. These display products and systems are
primarily electroluminescent displays (EL), active matrix liquid crystal displays (AMLCD), video wall displays,
and home theater projection systems.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Planar Systems, Inc. and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Planar International Ltd., DOME Imaging Systems, Inc, Clarity Visual Systems, Inc.,
and Runco International, Inc. All significam intercompany accounts and transactions are climinaled in
consolidation,

Fiscal year

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the last Friday in September. The last days of fiscal 2007, 2006. and
2005 were Sepiember 28, September 29, and September 30, respectively. Due to statutory requirements, Planar
Intermational’s fiscal year-end is September 30. All references to a year in these notes are to the Company’s fiscal
year ended in the period stated which includes the fiscal year results of Planar Intemational.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management lo make estimates and assumptions. These estimales and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of sales and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Foreign currency translation

The Euro is the functional currency of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries. Assets and liabilities of the
foreign subsidiary are translated into U.S. Dollars at current exchange rates, and sales and expenses are translated
using average rates. Gains and losses from translation of net assets are included in accumulated other
comprehensive loss. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions are included as a component of
non-operating income {expense).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash deposits in banks and highly liquid instruments with maturities of
three months or less from the time of purchase. Cash of $15,287 includes $627 which represents a deposit from a
customer that the Company may not access until final shipment is made; this shipment is scheduled for October
2008.
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Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Company has
established an allowance for doubtful accounts which represenis the Company’s best estimate of the amount of
the probable credit tosses in the Company’s existing accounts receivable. The Company determines the
allowance by performing ongoing evalnations of its customers and their ability to make payments. The Company
determines the adequacy of the allowance based on length of time past due, historical experience and judgment
of economic conditions. Additionally, the Company has a credit policy that is applied to its potential customers.
Account balances are charged off against the allowance after all options have been exhausted and the potential
recovery is considered unlikely.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market, net of adjustments for
estimated excess inventory and obsolescence based upon the Company’s best estimate of future product demand.
Inventories consist of:

2007 2006
RaW MalEriitls . ..\ttt e i e $13922  $12,860
Work INPrORress .. .. ... ..o o it 5,632 2,640
Finished goods . .. ... ..o e 39,474 34,024

$50.028  $49.524

Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of equipment is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
generally three to seven years. Capitalized leases and leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the lesser of the life of the leases or the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation of the
building is computed on a straight-tine basis over its estimated useful life, estimated to be 39 years.

Other assets

Included in other assets of $5,809 and $6,021 as of September 28, 2007 and September 29, 2006,
respectively, are assets associated with equipment which had not been placed in service as of September 28, 2007
and September 29, 2006 in the amounis of $457 and $653, respectively. As of September 28, 2007 and
September 29, 2006, other assets also included $2,790 and $3,006 related to the Company’s deferred
compensation ptan, which is discussed in Note 9. Assets of the deferred compensation plan are accounted for as
trading securities. Any increases in assets cause corresponding increases in liabilities, thereby negating any
income or loss effect in the Consolidated Statement of Operations as a result of changes in value of the deferred
compensation plan.

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are established for the temporary differences between the financial
reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities at the enacted tax rates expected to be in
effect when such amounts are realized or settled, Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when
it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.
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Revenue recognition

The Company’s policy is 1o recognize revenue for product sales when evidence of an arrangement exists,
sales price is determinable or fixed, title transfers and risk of loss has passed to the customer, which is generally
upon shipment of our products to our customers. The Company defers and recognizes service revenue over the
contractual period or as services are rendered. Some distributor agreements allow for potential return of products
and provide price protection under cenain conditions within limited time periods. Such return rights are generally
limited to short-term stock rotation. The Company estimates sales returns and price adjustments based on
historical experience and other qualitative factors, and records the amounts as a reduction in revenue at the later
of the time of shipment or when the pricing decision is made. Each period, price protection is estimated based
upon pricing decisions made and information received from distributors as to the amount of inventory they are
holding. The Company’s policies comply with the guidance provided by Staff Accounting Bulleting No. 104,
Revenue Recognition, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Judgments are required in evaluating
the credit worthiness of our customers, Credit is not extended to customers and revenue is not recognized until
the Company has determined that the cellection risk is minimal,

Research and development costs

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. The Company periodically enters into research
and development contracts with certain governmental agencies and private-sector companies. These contracts
generally provide for reimbursement of costs. Funding from research and development contracts is recognized as
a reduction in operating expenses during the period in which the services are performed and related direct
expenses are incurred, as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Rescarch and developmentexpense ... ............... $15978  $10,264  $510,487
Contractfunding . ...............coiniinniian, (702) {344) (658)
Research and development,net . .................... $15276 $ 9920 § 9,829

Warranty

The Company provides a warranty for its products and establishes an allowance at the time of sale to cover
estimated costs during the warranty period. The wamranty period is generally between 12 and 36 months. This
reserve is included in other current liabilities (Note 8).

Goodwill

In 2007 the Company recorded 320,293 of goodwill as a result of the acquisition of Runco, International,
Inc. The Company recorded goodwill of $32.440 as a result of the acquisition of Clarity Visual Systems, Inc.,
which occurred in 2006. The Company values goodwill and intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwiil and Other Intangible Assets”, (“FAS 142"). Goodwill is tested annually and whenever events or
circumstances occur indicating that goodwill may be impaired. The aonual impairmeni reviews were completed
during the second quarter of fiscal 2007 for goodwill related to the Medical and Industrial segmenis and in the
founth quarter of fiscal 2007 for the goodwill related to the Control Room and Signage segment. Neither analysis
indicated impairment.
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Intangible assets

The intangible assets consist primarily of acquired developed technology, customer relationships, and
trademarks and trade names that are being amortized over (heir estimated useful lives. When these assets were
acquired, the weighted-average amortization period was between four years and seven years. In fiscal 2005, the
Company recorded charges of $2,205 related to the impairment of intangible assets which had accumulated
amortization of $3,250 (see Note 4). In 2006, the Company recorded $29,500 of intangibie assets as a result of
the acquisition of Clarity Visual Systems, Inc. In 2007, the Company recorded $19,200 of intangible assets as a
result of the acquisition of Runco International, Inc. (see Note 3); $6,100 of the amount altocated 1o trade names
and trademarks has an indefinite life and the remaining identifiable intangible assets are being amortized over a
weighted average period of approximately 6 years. As of September 28, 2007 and September 29, 2006, the
Company had recorded accumulated amontization of $18,996 and $11,594, respectively. Amortization expense
was $7.402, $906, and $1,740 in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively and is estimated to be $7,912, $7.845,
$6,619, $5,971, and $3.148 in fiscal 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012, respectively. The remaining amortization
expense of $6,668 will be recognized in fiscal years 2013 through 2017.

Impairment of long-lived assets

In accordance with SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” Long-
lived assels and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or circumstances indicate costs may
not be recoverable. Long-lived assets are grouped al the lowest level for which distinguishable cash flows are
available. Impairment exists when the carrying value of the nsset is greater than the undiscounted future cash
flows expected to be provided by the asset. If impairment exists, the asset is writien down to its fair value. Fair
value is determined through quoted market values or through the calculation of the present value of future cash
flows expected to be provided by the asset. See additional discussion in Note 4, Impairment and restructuring
charges.

Advertising expenses

All advertising costs are expensed as incurred and 1otaled $4,844, $2,992, and $3.699, in fiscal 2007, 2006,
and 2003, respectively.

Net income (loss) per share

Basic net income (loss) per share was computed using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during each period. Diluted net income (loss) per share is computed using the weighted average number
of common shares plus dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the period. Incremental shares of 0,
271000, and 0 for the fiscal years ended September 28, 2007, Sepiember 29, 2006, and September 30, 2005,
respectively, were used in the calculations of diluted camings per share. In years in which a net loss is incurred, no
common stock- equivalents are included since they are antidilutive and as such all stock options outstanding were
excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share for the years ended September 28, 2007 and
September 30, 2005. For the year-ended September 29, 2006, potential common equivalent shares related to stock
options excludes 3,126,136 shares, which are not included in the computation of diluted net income (loss) per share
because the options’ exercise price was greater than the average market price of the common shares.
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Financial instruments

For short-term financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts
receivable, short-term debt, accounts payable and accrued compensation, the carrying amount approximates the
fair value because of the immediate short-term nature of those instruments. The differences between the fair
values and carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments a1 September 28, 2007 and Sepiember 29,
2006 were not material.

Derivative instruments

In January 2001, the Company began using forward exchange contracts to hedge the fluctuations in the
dollar value of its Euro denominated accounts receivable and accounts payable. In the years ended September 28,
2007, September 29, 2006, and September 30, 2003, the net gain (loss) on foreign currency exchange
transactions was $(152), $(659), and $104, respectively, which has been recorded as foreign exchange, net in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The forward exchange contracts are settled and renewed on a monthly
basis in order 10 maintain a balance between the balance sheet exposures and the contract amounts. The fair value
of the contracts is adjusted to market monthly, At September 28, 2007 the Company maintained open contracts of
$9,000 and €2,500. At September 29, 2006 the Company maintained an open contract of $24,300.

Stock-based compensation plans

On October 1, 2005, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 123 (revised
2004), “Share Based Payment,” (“FAS [23(R)") which requires the measurement and recognition of
compensation expense for all share based payment awards made 1o employees and directors including employee
stock options and employee stock purchases related to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan based on estimated fair
values. FAS 123(R) supersedes the Company’s previous accounting under Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25") for pericds beginning in fiscal 2006. In March
2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (“"SAB 107") relating
1o FAS 123(R). The Company has applied the provisions of SAB 107 in its adoption of FAS 123(R).

The Company adopled FAS 123(R) using the modified prospective transition method, which requires the
application of the accounting standard as of QOctober I, 2005, the first day of the Company’s fiscal year 2006.
The Company's Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the years ended September 28, 2007 and
September 29, 2006 reflect the impact of FAS 123(R). In accordance with the modified prospective transition
method, the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements for prior periods have not been restated to reflect, and
do not include, the impact of FAS 123(R). Share based compensation expense recognized under FAS 123(R) for
the twelve months ended September 28, 2007 and September 29, 2006, was $4,446 and $3 428, respectively,
which consisted of share based compensation expense related to employee siock options, restricted stock and the
employee stock purchase plan. See Note |1 for additional information.

There was no share based compensation expense related 10 employee stock options and employee stock
purchases recognized in fiscal year 2005, however pro forma stock option expense for fiscal 2005 was $5,628.
On April 1, 2005, the Company accelerated the vesting of all stock options granted on or before September 24,
2004, issued at an cxercise price equal o or greater than $13.00, which were awarded 10 employees and officers
under the Company’s various stock option plans. The acceleration of the vesting of these options did not result in
a charge based on generally accepted accounting principles under APB 25. For pro forma disclosure
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requirements under FAS 123, the Company recognized $2,800 of stock-based compensation for all options for
which vesting was accelerated, net of 1ax, during the year ended September 30, 2005. The Company took this
action to reduce future costs under FAS 123(R). In addition, because these options had exercise prices
substantially in excess of current market values, the accelerated vesting did not provide material value to the
optionees.

FAS 123(R) requires companies 10 estimate the fair value of share based payment awards on the date of
grant using an option-pricing model. The value of the portion of the award that is ullimately expected to vest is
recognized as expense over the requisite service periods in the Company's Consolidated Statement of Operations.
Prior to the adoption of FAS 123(R), the Company accounted for share based awards to employees and directors
using the intrinsic value method in accordance with APB 25 as allowed under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation” (“FAS 123"). Under the intrinsic value method,
no share based compensation expense related to employee stock options had been recognized in the Company’s
Consolidated Statement of Operations, because the exercise price of the Company’s slock options granted (0
employees and directors equaled the fair market value of the underlying stock at the date of grant.

Share based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the portion of
share based payment awards that are ultimately expected to vest during the period. Sharc based compensation
expense recognized in the Company's Consolidated Statement of Operations for fiscal 2007 included
compensation expense for share based payment awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of Sepiember 30,
2005 based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the pro forma provisions of FAS 123 and
compensation expense for the share based payment awards granted subsequent to September 30, 2005 is based on
the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of FAS 123(R) and SAB 107. Compensation
expense for all share based payment awards is recognized using the straight-line single-option method. As share
based compensation expense recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for 2007 and 2006 is based
on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. FAS 123(R) requires
forfeitures 10 be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures
differ from those estimates. In the Company’s pro forma information required under FAS 123 for the periods
prior to fiscal 2006, the Company accounted for forfeitures as they occurred.

Upon adoption of FAS 123(R), the Company maintained its method of valuation of employee stock options
granted using the Black-Scholes option pricing model (“Black-Scholes model”) which was previously used for
the Company’s pro forma information required under FAS 123. For additional information, see Note 11. The
Company’s determination of fair value of share based payment awards on the date of grant using an option
pricing model is affected by the Company’s stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of variables,
including the risk-free interest rate, the expected dividend yield, the expected option life, and expected volatility
over the term of the awards.

On November 10, 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued FASB Staff Position
No. FAS 123(R)-3 “Transition Election Related to Accounting for Tax Effects of Share Based Payment Awards.”
The Company has elected to adopt the altemative transition method provided in the FASB Staff Position for
calculating the tax effects of share based compensation pursuant to FAS 123(R). The aliernative transition
method includes simplified methods to establish the beginning balance of the additional paid-in capital pool
(“APIC pool") related to the 1ax effects of employee share based compensation, and to determine the subsequent
impact on the APIC pool and Consolidated Staternents of Cash Flows of the tax effects of employee share based
compensation awards that are outstanding upon adopiion of FAS 123(R).
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June of 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertzinty in Income
Taxes” (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income laxes recognized in an enterprise’s
financial statements in accordance with FASBE Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, and prescribes
a recognition threshoid and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a
1ax position 1aken or expected 10 be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. This Interpretation
will be effective for the Company for the fiscal year ending September 2008. The Company has nol yel
determined the impact that adoption of this will have on its financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) lssue
No. 06-03 “How Sales Taxes Collecied from Customers and Remitted 1o Governmental Authorities Should be
Presented in the Income Statement (that is, Gross Versus Net Presentation)” (EITF 06-03). The EITF reached a
consensus that the presentation of taxes on either @ gross or net basis is an accounting policy decision that
requires disclosure. EITF 06-03 is effective for our fiscal year ended September 2003. Sales Tax amounts
collected from customers have been recorded on a net basis. The adoption of EITF 06-03 will not have any effect
on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

In September of 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108
“Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstalements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements” (SAB 108). SAB 108 provides guidance regarding the process of quantifying financial statement
misstatements for purposes of determining whether the current year's financial stalements are materially
misstated. SAB 108 permits registrants to record the cumulative effect of initial adoption by recording the
necessary “correcting” adjustments to the carrying values of the assets and liabilities as of the beginning of that
year with the offsetting adjustment recorded 1o the opening balance of retained eamnings only if material under
the dual method. In accordance with SAB 108 the Company adjusted its beginning retained earnings for fiscal
2007. See Note 16 for additional information on the adoption of SAB 108,

In September of 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (SFAS 157). SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures aboul fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 does not impose fair value measurements on items nol already accounted for at fair
value; rather it applies, with certain exceptions, to other accounting pronouncements that either require or permit
fair value measurements, This siatement is effective for the Company for the year ended September 2009, The
Company has not yet determined the impact that adoption of this Statement will have on its financial statements.

Reclassification

Cenain balances in the 2006 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to 2007 presentations.
Such reclassifications had no effect on results of operations or retained eamings.

NOTE2 CONCENTRATION OF RISK
Credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist principally of
trade receivables. The risk in trade accounts receivable is limited due 10 the credit wonthiness of the companies
comprising the Company’s customer base and their dispersion across many different sectors of the electronics
industry and geographies. At Sepiember 28. 2007, the Company does not believe it had any significant credit risks.
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Supplier risks

The Company relies on third party manufacturers for a significant portion of its product components.
Reliance on suppliers ruises several risks, including the possibility of defective pans, reduced control over the
availability and delivery schedule for pans, and the possibility of increases in component costs. The Company’s
supply of products and profitability can be adversely affecied by each of these risks.

The Company also purchases single-source components for which it has no guaranteed alternative source of
supply, and an extended interruption in the supply of any of these components could adversely affect the
Company's results of operations. Furthermore, many of the components used in the Company’s products are
purchased from suppliers located outside the United States. Trading policies adopled in the future by the United
Siates or foreign governments could restrict the availability of components or increase the cost of oblaining
components, Any significant increase in component prices or decrease in component availability could have an
adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations. The Company has in the past and may in the future face
difficulty ensuring an adequate supply of quality LCD panel glass used in certain products in the Industrial,
Medical, Commercial, Home Theater, and Command and Control products. In the future the Company may also
face difficulties ensuring an adequate supply of rear-projection screens used in our Control Room and Digital
Signage products. The Company is actively engaged in cfforts to reduce this risk area.

The risks mentioned above related to reliance on suppliers will also impact the Company’s contract
manufacturers. In addition, the Company is reliant on its contract manufuacturers’ ability to maintain suitable
manufacturing facilities, train manufacturing employees, manage the supply chain effectively, manufacture a
quality product, and provide spare parts in support of the Company’s warranty and customer service obligations.
Failure of the Company’s contract manufacturers to deliver in any one of these areas could have an adverse effect
on its results of operations.

NOTE 3 BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
Acquisition of Clarity Visual Systems, Inc.

In the fourth quarter of 2006 the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares and assumed all of the
outstanding stock options of Clarity Visual Systems, Inc. (“Clarity”). In the fourth quarter of 2007 the Company
finalized the allocation of the purchase price and in accordance with SFAS 141, “Business Combinations™
recorded the changes in estimates of the fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired as an adjustment to
goodwill. These adjustments consisted primarily of reductions to restructuring accruals, which were panially
offset by adjustments to accruals for preacquisition liabilities. The final goodwill allocated to the Control Room
and Digital Signage segment us a result of the Clarity acquisition was $32,440 related to the Clarity acquisition.

Acquisition related costs, which are a component of the overall purchase price, include estimated costs
associated with the restructuring of the pre-acquisition activities of Clarity Visual Systems, Inc. Restructuring
costs are primarily comprised of cosis related to excess employees and facilities. Estimated costs were based
upon a plan that was committed to by management during the fourth quarter of 2006. Restructuring costs have
been accounted for under Emerging Issues Task Force Issues No. 95-3, “Recognition of Liabilities in Connection
with a Purchase Business Combination” (*EITF 95-3") and have been recognized as a liability assumed in the
purchase business combination. In fiscal 2007 the liability was adjusted as a result of changes in the execution of
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the Company's restructuring plan. The Company anticipates that the actions related 1o these aclivities will be
completed during fiseal 2008. Information regarding the restructuring liability is as follows:

In D0O"s
Balance at September 29,2006 . ... ... $11,078
Revisions to original estimate ... . ... .. ... v itinrraninnrarranrnnns (5,103)
Cash Paid ... .. i e e e e e e (4,146)
Balance at September 28,2007 .. ... ... ... ... $ 1,829

Acquisition of Runco International, Inc.

On May 23, 2007, the Company acquired substamiially all of the assets and certain liabilities of Runco
International, Inc. (“Runco™}, a supplier of premium projectors, video processors, plasma screens and LCD’s 10
the home theater market. As a result of the acquisition the Company is able o accelerate its reach into the market
for high-end home theater projection systems, large-format thin video displays, and froni-projection screens.
Activities of the Home Theater segment nce reporied as a separate segment.

The acquisition was accounted for by the purchase method of accounting, in accordance with SFAS 141,
“Business Combinations.” The Company obtained a third party vajuation study to estimate the fair value of the
acquired intangible assets. The Company began to consolidate the financial results of Runco on May 23, 2007.
The purchase price for accounting purposes was denved as follows:

In 0O0's

0. T O PN $36,700
Acquisition relaled COSIS ... .. ... e e 2,178
B+ 1 $38,878

Acquisition refated costs include approximately $1,529 of estimated costs associated with the restructuring
of the pre-acquisition activities of Runco. Restructuring costs are primarily comprised of costs associated with
improving global manufecturing efficiencies. Estimated costs are based upon a plan that was committed to by
management during the third quarter of 2007. Restructuring costs have been accounted for under EITF 95-3 and
have been recognized as a liability assumed in the purchase business combination. Changes, if any, in our
estimate as a result of execution of the approved plan will be recorded as an adjustment to goodwiil within one
year of the acquisition date and to the results of operations thereafter. The Company anticipates that actions
related to the above activities will be completed before or during the second quanter of fiscal 2008.

The 10tal purchase price of the acquisition was allocated as follows:

In 000's
Net tangible liabitities acquired . ... ... . 0 i i e $ 615
Intangible assels ... ... .. . e e i e 19,200
Goodwill ... e e 20,293
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The net tangible assets are comprised of the following:

In 000's
Bank Overdraft .. ... o £ (907
Accountsreceivable .. ... L L 3364
R 11 (] -+ 6,856
L 1o o1 -4 1 200
Total CUMEME AS80S . .. oot r ettt tie it et im ettt ittt enennnsn 9,513
Property, plant and equipment ... ... ... i e 273
L0 1 g T3 A 22
Ol AS LS . ot i ittt sttt ittt e e 9,808
Accounts payable ... ... ... L. e e R 7.389
ACCTUCH BXPEISES . ..ottt it i ba i ie e e e e 3,034
Total current liabilities . ..., ... ... i e 10,423
Nettangible assets .. ... i e e 3 (615)

Goodwill of $20,293 was recorded as a result of consideration paid in excess of the fair value of net tangible
and intangible assets acquired, principally due 1o the fair value of the revenue expecied 1o be derived from funure
products and the value of the workforce acquired. This goodwill has been allocated to the Home Theater segment
and will not be amortized, but will be reviewed periodically for potential impairment. We expect the entire
amount of goodwill to be deductible for tax purposes.

This purchase price allocation is preliminary and o final determination of any required purchase accounting
adjustments will be made once the final analysis of the total purchase cost is completed. The final analysis is
pending finalization of various estimates.

Identifiable intangible assets in the amount of $19,200 were acquired in the Runco acquisition and consist
primarily of trade names, trademarks and dealer relationships. Of the amount allocated to tradenames and trademarks,
$6,100 has an indefinite life. The remaining intangibles assets related to the Runco acquisition are being amortized
over a weighted average amortization period of approximately 9 years,

As of September 28, 2007 the consolidated intangible assets, including those recorded in conjunction with the
Runco acquisition, are comprised of the following:

In 000's

Customer and dealer relationships, net of accumulated amonization of $1,778 .. .. $18,022
Acquired technologies, net of accumulated amortization of $16,221 ............ 16,938
Tradenames and Trademarks, net of accumulated amortization of 3583 ......... 9,117
Other, net of accumulated amortizationof $414 .. ... ... . .. ci i ., 201
1 344,278

The weighted average amortization period for the consolidated identified intangibles subject to amortization
is approximately 6 years.

The following table reflects the unaudited combined results of the Company, Clarity, and Runco, as if the
mergers had taken place at the beginning of each period presented. The pro forma information includes
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adjustments for the amortization of the intangible assets, increased interest expense. reduced inlerest income, and
the relaied tax effect of these adjustments. The results of operations of Runco for all perieds prior 10 the
acquisition have not been audited and no assurance can be given that the stand-alone Runco resulls were prepared
in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles {(GAAP). The pro forma information in the
following 1able does not necessarily reflect the actual results that would have occurred nor is it necessarily
indicative of future results of operations of the combined companies.

Sept. 28, Sept. 29,
2006

247
RVEIUE « o oottt e e $311.454 §$323428
Netincome (J0S8) . ....... it iniin e {21.579) (1,787
Basic net income (loss)pershare . ... .. .. ... .o i, $ (024 § (O
Dituted net income {loss) pershare . . ............... ... ...... $ 02 5 01

NOTE4 IMPAIRMENT AND RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

Impairment and restructuring charges consist of:

Yeur ended
2007 2006 2005
IMpairment Charges .. ... vt iiia i $ 131 $— $37,242
Restructuring charges ... i i 1,494 503 2,671
Total L e e e $1,625 $503  $39913

2003 Impairment and Severance Charges

During the second gquanter of fiscal 2005, the Company determined that cenain long-lived assets were
impaired, and therefore recorded a $3,368 charge to reduce these assets to fair value. This determination was
based on a review of operational results for cenain product lines and shifts in strategic direction for certain
company activities. This impairment charge includes $1,651 for identifiable intangible assets related to
developed technology, for which the underlying undiscounted cash flows did not support the carrying value of
the assets, $655 of capitalized costs associated with a discontinued information technology systems development
effort, and $1,062 of tooling for products that were abandoned, discontinued or for which the undiscounted cash
flows did not support the asset’s carrying value. Fair value was determined based on a cash flow analysis for
each asset that was derermined to be impaired.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company adopted a cost reduction plan, including the
termination of employment of certain employees who performed primarily sales, marketing and administrative
functions. Restructuring charges of $1,800, primarily related to severance benefits, were recorded pursuant to this
plan. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company determined that $404 of the $1,800 restructuring
charges was not required. The original estimates changed due to employment severance costs being less than
originally anticipated as employees filled vacant position with the company.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company determined that goodwill associated with the Medical
segment and the value of certain long-lived assets was impaired, and therefore recorded a $33.913 charge to reduce
these assets to fair value. This impairment charge includes $33,320 of goodwill related to the acquisition of DOME
Imaging Systems, and $554 of intangible assets related 1o developed anatog technology. for which the underlying
undiscounted cash flows did not support the carrying value of the assets. The goodwill impairment charge was
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triggered by Medical segment operating results trending differently than originally forecasted during the Company’s
annual impairment test conducted during the second quarter of 2005. The developed technology write-down was
triggered by an end-of-life decision made in the fourth quarter of 2005 for all Medical segment analog products.

The goodwill impairment was calculated as the difference between the implied fair value of goodwill and
the carrying value of goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill was calculated as the difference between the
fair value of the Medical segment on the date of valuation in the fourth quarter of 2005, as determined by a third-
party valuation service, which used assumptions provided by management, and the fair value of the net assets of
the Medical segment, excluding goodwill.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the employment of certain employees who performed primarily
sales and administrative functions, including the Company's former Chief Executive Officer, was terminated.
Restructuring charges of $1,275, primarily related 10 severance benefits, have been recorded pursuant to this
plan, which include $56 of charges related to the acceleration of stock options.

2006 Severance Charges
During the first quarter of 2006, the Company recorded restructuring charges of $347 for severance benefits,
and the acceleration of stock options as a resuil of the termination of the Company’s former Chief Operating
Officer. During the second quarter of 2006, the Company terminated the employment of centain employees who
performed primarily manufacturing functions. Restructuring charges of $156, primarily related to severance
benefits were recorded pursuant to this plan.

2007 Impainnent and Restructuring Charges

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company adopted a cost reduction plan, including termination of
employment of certain employees who performed primarily engineering, sales, marketing and administrative
functions. Restructuring charges of 31,625 include $1.494 related 1o severance benefits and $13} for tooling of a
product line that was discontinued.

These charges are tecorded as impairment and restructuring charges in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations.

The restructuring charges incurred affected the Company’s financial position as follows:

Accrued Other
Compensation Liabilitles
Balance as of September 24,2004 .......... ... 00 s — $167
Additonal charges (adjustments) ......... ... ... 2.615 -_—
Cashpaid OUl ... ...ttt (1,350} (1eh
Balance as of September 30,2005 .......... ... $ 1,265 5
Additional charges (adjustments} . ..........o vt 503 —
Cashpaidoul ... ... i (1,408) —_
Balance as of September 29,2006 . ...l £ 360 $—
Additional charges (adjustments) . ... ... .o 1.494 —
Cashpaidout ....... ..o it (770) —
Balance as of September 28,2007 ........ ... ...t $ 1,084 3 —
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During fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005, the Company paid cash of $770, $1,408, and $1.517 related to
severance, contractual liabilities and lease termination costs. The remaining amounis are expected to be paid in
fiscal 2008.

NOTES5 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 47 “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations,” (FIN 47) at the end of fiscal 2006. This statement requires that the fair value of a legal liability for
an assel retirement obligation be recorded in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair
value can be made. Upon recognition of a liability, the asset retirement cost is recorded as an increase in the
carrying value of the related long-lived asset and then depreciated over the life of the asset. The assel retirement
obligations arise primarily from contractual commitments to remove leasehold improvemenis and retumn the
property (o a specified condition when the lease terminates. As a result of an evaluation of our assel retirement
obligations, the Company recorded a $350 current liability for asset retirement obligations and a $16 increase in
the carrying value of the related assets, net of $334 of accumulated depreciation at the end of fiscal 2006. The
cumulative effect that was recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 upon the adoption of this accounting
standard resulted in a charge of $202, net of the 1ax benefit of $132.

The following table presents the pro forma liability for asset retirement obligation as if the provision of FIN
47 had been applied at the beginning of fiscal 2005:

Ycar ended
2007 2006 2005
Liability for asset retirement obligation .. ............ 360 3334 $301

The following table presents net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share for fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005
as if the provisions of FIN 47 had been applied at the beginning of fiscal 2005:

Year ended
2007 2006 2005
Netincome (loss), asreported ... .......... oo $(23,184) $6,280  $(34,880)
Add back:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net
of 1ax of $0, und $132, and 30 respectively .......... — 202 —

Deduct:
Depreciation, netof lax ................ ... ... ..., 10 19 19
Netincome (loss), asadjusted . .............. ... .. $(23,174) $6463  $(34.899)
Net income (loss) per share as adjusted:

BasiC ... e e $ (133 $043 8§ (237

Diluted .. ... ..., . i $ (1.33)) $042 % (237N

The lease associated with the above asset retirement obligation expired in 2007. Before amounts were
expended to fulfill the asset retirement obligations the Company entered into a new lease for the same facility.
The new lease requires the removal of fewer leasehold improvements and as such the asset retirement obligation
was adjusted to $60 in 2007,
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NOTE 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property. plant and equipment, at cost, consisl of:

2007 2006
BUildings ... ..ottt i e $11526 3$11,093
Machinery and equipment . ....... ... e 44,204 37,497
Total property, plant and equipment ..................... 55,730 48,590
Less accumulated depreciation . . ... ..o i 40,812y (37,710)
Net property, plant and equipment . ..., ...... ... .. ..0.. $149i8 3 10.880

The Company recorded depreciation expense of $4.898, $6,724, and $6,984 in fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively.

NOTE7 BORROWINGS
Credit Facility

The Company’s current credit agreement, as amended, allows for borrowing up to half of the net value of its
domestic inventory, accounts receivable, and property, plant and equipment. The agreement allows for a maximum
borrowing capacity of $32.5 million, expires on December 1, 2008, and is secured by substantially all assets of the
Company. The interest rates can fluctuate quarterly based upon the actual fixed charge coverage ratio and the
LIBOR rate. As of September 28, 2007, there was $23 million outstanding, with no borrowings outstanding as of
September 29, 2006 and September 30, 2005. The weighted average interest rate for the year-ending September 28,
2007 was 7.4%. The agreement contained certain financial covenants, including a minimum EBITDA covenant,
with which the Company was not in compliance as of September 28, 2007. In December 2007 the Company
received a waiver for the fourth quarter of 2007 vialation of the minimum EBITDA covenant and entered into a
fourth amendment 1o the credit agreement, including the following financial covenants: a fixed charge coverage
ratio, a collateral coverage ratio, and minimum nect worth. The fourth amendment to the credit agreement also
deleted the previously existing minimum EBITDA covenant, changed the definition of and reset the fixed charge
coverage ratio covenant. The amendment reduces the amount of the overall commitment by $2.5 million at
quarterly intervals on April 1, 2008, July |, 2008 and October 1, 2008. While the Company believes it will be in
compliance with all the covenants through the term of the agreement, as amended, failure to comply with all
applicable covenants, or to obtain waivers therefore, would result in an event of default and could result in the
acceleration of the Company's debt, which in turn could lead to the inability to pay debts and the loss of control of
certain assets. [n addition, the agreement includes a subjective acceleration clause which could be invoked by the
lender. Given the recent covenant violation, it is reasonably possible that the lender could invoke this clause and
accelerate repayment of amounts due under the facility. Management does not believe that this is probable, but if
this event occurred or any other covenant violation were not waived, the Company would pursue other sources of
financing, potentially including more costly alternatives, or the disposal of centain assets.

Capitalized Leases

During fiscal 2002, the Company entered into a capital lease for the leasehold improvements in its new
offices. In fiscal 2006, as a result of the acquisition the Company assumed Clarity’s capital leases. Capital leases
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acquired included a lease for the St. Sernin, France facility which was terminated in 2007 in conjunction with the
restructuring activitics related to the Clarity acquisition, as discussed in Note 3.

as of September 29, 2006. Accumulated depreciation was $1,327 and $1,020 related to capitalized leases as of

I Included in property, plant and equipment are $1,810 of assets leased as of September 28, 2007, and $2,347
September 28, 2007 and September 29, 2006, respectively,

Future minimum payments under capital lease obligations at September 28, 2007 are as follows:

2008 .. e e e e $348
2000 . e 157
2L L —
3 1 1 I —
201 2 I —
Therealter .. e e e —
Total minimum lease payments . ........ .o iivriin et e 505
Less amounts representing iNMerest ... .. ....iuvnanenrerariarerrearaneeios (29)
Present value of net minimum lease payments .. .......vvrivecmiriiiiennan, 476
LSS CUTTENT POTUION . . o\ v et v v it et e st aeae e naataoaneranaotesannns 324
Long-term portion of obligations ........ ... .o i $152

NOTES OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other current liabilities consist of:

2007 2006
WWIITANLY TESEIVE . .t v v et s s en et te s ma e aa e ean e et etsetsseassneannns $ 5667 $ 3,691
Income taxes payable ... ... ot e e e e 2,383 202
Accrued COMPENSAION .. ... ...ttt i e 14,736 18,602
81117 I TN 15,286 7,742
1) $38,072 $30,237

The Company provides a warranty for its products and establishes an allowance at the time of sale to cover
estimated costs during the warranty period. The warranty period is generally between 12 and 36 months. This
reserve is included in other current liabilities.

The reconciliation of the changes in the warranty reserve is as follows:

2007 2006
Balance at beginningof period ... ... ... o $3.691 52932
Cash paid for WAITaNty TEPAIrS .. .. v i e (2.425) (4,055
Provision for current period sales . .. .. ... ... i s 2,751 3,886
Provision assumed ip acquisition ... ....... .. i i e e 1650 928
Balance atend of period .. ..o e $5.667 35 3,691
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NOTEY9 OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Other long-term liabilities consist of;

2007 2006
Deferred income tax liability . ........ ... e $ 5546 $ 8.858
Deferred compensation plan liabilities ........ ... .. ... ... o i 2,790 3,006
Other long-term Hiabilities . ... ... i e 2,773 1,789
L $11,109 $13,653

The Company had a deferred compensation plan wherein eligible executives may elect 1o defer up to 100%
of their regular compensation and incenlive awards, and non-cmployee Board members may elect to defer up to
100% of their directors compensation. The compensation deferred under this plan is credited with eamings and
losses as determined by the rate of return on investments selected by the plan participants. Each participant is
fully vested in all deferred compensation and those eamnings that have been credited to their individual accounts.
No executives or non-employees elected to defer any compensation in fiscal 2007 and at September 28, 2007 the
liability represents amounts deferred in prior years. The Company's promise to pay amounts deferred under this
plan is an unsecured obligation.

NOTE 10 INCOME TAXES

The components of income (loss} before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change consist of
the following:

2007 2006 005
DOl « ittt et e e e e $(18,299) § 5,786 ${43.,393)
S (3.426) 4,593 5,567
15T ) $(21,725) $10.379 $(37.826)

The following table summarizes the provision (benefit) for US federal, stale and foreign taxes on income:

007 2006 2005
Current:
Federal ...t e e e e e $ 920 $1,323  $(1.646)
] 751 PP 119 170 (204}
T g . . e e e 215 1,185 1,168
1,263 2.688 (682)
Deferred:
Federal ... .. e et 22 1,062 (1,.973)
N3] 71 (- 3 136 (244)
FOre N . e 171 1t (47)

196 1,209 (2.264)
351,459 $3,897  $(2.946)
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The differences between the U.S. federal statutory 1ax rate and the Company’s effective rate are as follows:

2007 2006 2005

Computed StatUIOTY TALE ... oottt et e iere s e inaaeeanaranaansses (35.00% 35.0% (35.0)%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefits .. ... i i e 45 45 (5.2)
Effectof foreigntaxrates ... ... .. e 03 (8 (3
Permanem differences resulting from compensation limitations . ................... —_ 2.6 —
Permanent differences resulting from goodwill adjustiments .. ............ ... ..., — — 34.8
Effect of deemed foreign income distnbutions ............. ... .l — 4.6 —
Change in valuationallowance . ........ ... it i 443 — (0.2)
% 7.1 - _— {2.5) —

L 11 T j M) E)
Effectivetax rmte .. ... .o i e 6.7% 37.6% (1.8)%

The tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards which gave rise 10 significant portions of the
deferred 1ax assets and liabilities as of September 28, 2007 and September 29, 2006 were as follows:

2007 2006

Deferred tax assets:
IV ENONY L . i e $ 4195 $ 3568
D oIl FBVEIIIE ..ottt ot et e et e e e e e 3,111 2,967
B 1S T P 1,366 1,259
Payroll and severancerelated ................. et 6.300 3,950
IR TS EIVES .. .. ittt ittt e tr st an s r e 1,510 806
Net operating los8es ... ... ittt i et e e 3,300 5,292
B3 T 4= L1 -3 U 2.917 2,037
Gross delemmed (X 8818 . oL it ettt ettt e it e it 22.699 19.879
Valuation allowante ... ... .. e e e e e (12.836)  (5,240)

Defermed LXK @55615 ..o vttt ettt e et e e 9,863 14,639
Deferred 1ax liabilities:
Accumulated deprecialion .. ... ... . i i i e e 314) (3.671)
T T S (9.800) (11,532)

Deferred tax liabilities .. ..o it e (10,114) (15,203)
Net deferred tax asset (liability) .. ... e b e e e e e e e e e $ 25 % (364)

The deferred tax assets and linbilities are recorded in the following balunce sheet accounts;

2007 2006
AT CURTEII ASSBIS . o vt sttt et et tes b e noaes e iaeiaeanenneraeiannns $5418 38,206
LT 111 Y 613 300
Othercumment Babilities .. ... ..ottt e i it et cra et i iaeaas {736) (212)
"Oiher long-term liabilities ... ... o i (5,546) (8,858}
LI § 251 § (564
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During fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005 the Company recognized 1ax benefits of $0, $719, and $0,
respectively, related to differences between financial and tax reporting of stock option transactions. This
difference was credited to common stock.

The Company esteblishes a valuation allowance for cenain deferred tax assets, when it is more likely than
not that such deferred tux assets will not be realized. For fiscal year 2007, the valuation allowance increased
$7.596 primarily as a result of the write-down of the company’s U.S. deferred tax assets. The write-down was a
result of the Company’s recent three year cumulative GAAP loss which is given more weight than projected
future income when determining the need for a valuation allowance. The valuation allowance increased $5,051 in
2006 primarily as a result of the acquisition of Clarity's deferred 1ax assets which are not expected to be realized.
A significant portion of this valuation allowance will be credited to goodwill if ever realized. The valuation
allowance decreased $61 in 2005 due to changes in facts and circumstances related to the utilization of tax credit
or loss copitel carryforwards.

At September 28, 2007, the Company had federal and state research and experimentation credits of
approximately $1,794, available to reduce future state tax. The carryforwards expire at various dates through
2022. In addition, as of September 29, 2006, the Company has alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of
$370 that do not expire, and foreign tax credits available of $754 which expire at various dates through 2017.

The Company has not provided for U.S. federal income and foreign withholding taxes on its undistributed
earnings from non-U.S. operations as of September 28, 2007 because such earings are intended to be reinvested
indefinitely outside of the United Siates. The amount of the Company’s undistributed foreign eamnings at
September 28, 2007 is not reasonably estimable.

NOTE 11 SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock

The Company is authorized to issue up 1o 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock at $.0) par value. At
September 28, 2007, no shares of preferred stock have been issued; however, 200,000 shares of Series D Junior
Participating Preferred Stock have been reserved for issuance in connection with the Company's Shareholder
Rights Plan. Additional series of preferred stock may be designated and the relaled rights and preferences fixed
by action of the Board of Directors.

Stock aptions

In fiscal 1994, the Company adopted the 1993 Siock Incentive Plan, which provides for the granting of
options to buy shares of Common Stock. During fiscal 1997, the Company adopted the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan
with the same provisions and guidelines as the aforementioned 1993 plan. During fisca! 1999, the Company
adopted the 1999 Non-Qualified stock Option Plan with the same provisions and guidelines as the aforementioned
1993 plan. Tota) shares reserved under these plans are 4,465,000. Options granted under the plans generally vest
over a two-to four-year period and expire four to ten years after grant. The Company also adopted a 1993 Stock
Option Plan for Non-employee Directors, amended and restated, which provides for the granting of options to buy
Common stock 1o non-employee directors. Total shares reserved under this plan are 800,000 shares. The Company
acquired two plans as a result of the acquisition of Clarity Visuval Systems, Inc., the 1995 Stock Incentive Plan and
the Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan, Both plans provide for the granting of options to buy shares of Common
Stock. Total shares teserved under these plans are 1,230,060, Options granted under the plans generally become
exercisable over a three- to five-year period and expire seven to ten years after the date of grant. Options are also
granted to certain executives in accordance with individual compensation agreements.
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Information regarding these option plans is as follows:

Number of  Welghted Average

Shares Option Prices
Options outstanding a1 September 29,2006 . ..............oo i ean, 3,352.974 11.16
Granted relating to business acquisition ................ ... ..o el 27.000 7.78
Granted . ... e 568,189 8.61
Exercised .. ... e e e (355.799) 444
Forfeited ... .o e (328,328) 9.36
EXpITed . o e e (534.394) 18.67
Options outstanding at September 28,2007 ... ... ... ... vt 2.729,642 10.30
Exercisable at September 28,2007 . ... ... i 1,545,892 11.26

The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during the year ended September 28, 2007
was $3.46. The weighted average grant date fair value was $5.62, and $4.64 for the years ended September 29,
2006 and September 30, 2003, respectively. The total pretax intrinsic value of options exercised during the year
ended was $1,716, $1,885, and $0 for fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2003, respectively.

As of September 28, 2007, the total pretax intrinsic value of options outstanding was 5815 and the options
had a weighted average remaining contractual term of 6.1 years. The total pretax intrinsic value of exercisuble
shares a1 September 28, 2007 was $778 and a weighted average contractual life of 5.1 years. For the year ending
September 28, 2007, the amount of cash received for the exercise of options was $1,605, and the corresponding
tax benefit related 10 option exercises for the same time period was $0. For the year ending September 29, 2006
the amount of cash received for the exercise of options was $2,561, and the corresponding tax benefit was $130.

Restricted stock

The Company’s plans provide for the issuance of restricted stock 1o employees, (“Nonvested shares” per
FAS 123R). With the exception of cenain grants made to the Company's Chief Exccutive Officer. Chief
Financial Officer, and General Managers of certain of the Company’s business units, and certain other senior-
level managers, the shares issued generally vest over a two- to four-year period, upon meeting objective market,
objective performance conditions, the passage of time, or a combination of the three. In the event the markel
conditions are not met, shares generally would vest at the end of four years. The Company issued 765,727 shares
of restricted stock to employees in 2007, In the years ended September 29, 2006 and September 30, 2005, the
Company issued employees 394,000 and 249,525 shares. respectively.

Information regarding outstanding resiricted stock awards is as follows:

Number of Weighted Average
Shares Grant Date Fair Value

Restricted slock outstanding at September 29,2006 . ............. .. L. s 428,849 $10.60
Granted relating to business acquisition ............................ 26,000 7.78
Granted . ... .. o e e e e e 739,727 8.18
Vested ... e e e (101,604) 10.47
Forfeited ... o i e e e {131.525) 9.98

Restricted stock outstanding at September 28,2007 .. ... ... ... ..l 961,447 9.10
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The total fair value of shares vested in the year ended September 28. 2007 was $863. The fair value of
shares vested in the years ended September 29, 2006 and September 30, 2005 was $2,697, and $79, respectively.
The 1ax benefit related to the vested restricted stock was $0 for the period ending September 28, 2007. The tax
benefit related to restricted stock expense was $0 for the period ending September 28. 2007

Performance-based restricted stock awards

In the third quarter of fiscal 2006, the following market condition restricied stock awards were issucd (o a
General Manager of one of the Company's business units:

e 31,250 shares composed of 15,625 shares that vest upon the attainment of an average daily stock price
of $20 for a period of 40 trading days (the $20 tranche), and 15,625 shares thai vest upon the
attainment of an average daily stock price of $25 for a period of 40 trading days (the $25 tranche). The
value of these 31.250 shares, and the related requisite service period, was determined by use of a
Monte Carlo simulation model, and is being recognized as expense over the requisite service period,
pursuant 1o FAS 123(R). The total value of these 31,250 shares is $358, and the average service period,
estimated at the time of issue, is 1.4 years.

Monte Carlo simulation modeling is a method for valuing contingent claims on stock with characteristics
that depend on the trailing stock price path, Monte Carlo modeling uses computer generated pseudorandom
numbers to build sample stock price paths, for each of which a payoff is calculated, and all of which are
discounted back to the grant date using a risk-neutral rate. Afier generating many such paths and payoffs, the
value of the restricied stock is set to equal the average of the payoffs. Monte Carlo modeling also derives the
probability of vesting and the length of the vesting period.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, the following shares of performance-based restricted stock awards were
issued to General Managers of the Company's business units:

» 81,250 shares, which wifl vest at levels ranging from 0% of shares issued to 100% of shares issued,
dependent upon the achievement of internal performance metrics specific to each General Manager’s
business unit, up to and including fiscal 2009 resulis. If 100% of these shares ultimately vest, the total
expense related to these shares will be approximately $800. The average service period, estimated at
the time of issue, is 3 years.

In the third guarter of fiscal 2007, the following shares of Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) performance-
based restricted stock awards were issued to the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial officer, and other
various senior-level managers of the Company: '

+ 515,000 shares, which will vest at levels ranging from 0% to 100% of shares issued, dependent upon the
achievement of various internal performance metrics up (o and including fiscal 2009 results. If certain
metrics are achieved, additional shares, up 1o 50% of those initially issued, can be granted to the
Managers. [f [00% of the issued shares vest, the total expense related to these shares will be $4,185. The
average derived service period, estimated at the time of issuc is 2.4 years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In fiscal 2005, the Company adopted the 2004 Employec Stock Purchase Plan, which replaced the 1994
Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan provides that eligible employees may
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contribute, through payroll deductions, up to 10% of their eamings toward the purchase of the Company's
common stock at 85 percent of the fair market value at specific dates. The fair value of the purchase righis is
esiimated on the first day of the offering period using the Black-Scholes model. The use of the Black-Scholes
model, and related assumptions integrated into the model, are discussed in a subsequent paragraph. Employces
purchased 114,966 shares, at an average price of $6.46 in iscal 2007,

Shareholders Rights Plan

In February 2006, the Board of Directors approved a sharcholder rnights plan and declared a dividend of one
preferred share purchase right for each outstanding common share. Each right represents the right to purchase
one hundredth of a share of Preferred Stock, at an exercise price of $100.00, subject to adjustment. The rights are
only exercisable ten days after a person or group acquires, or commences a tender or exchange offer 1o acquire,
beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Company's outstanding common stock. Subject 10 the terms of the
sharcholder rights plan and the discretion of the Board of Directors, each right would entitle the holder to
purchase one share of Common Stock of the Company for each right a1 one-half of the then-current price. The
rights expire in February 2016, but may be redeemed by action of the Board of Directors prior to thal time at
$0.001 per right.

Valuation and Expense Information under FAS 123(R)

On Qciober 1, 2005, the Company adopied FAS 123(R), which requires the measurement and recognition of
compensation expense for al) share based payment awards made 1o the Company’'s employees and directors
including employee stock options and employee stock purchases related to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan,
based on estimated fair values. The following table summarizes share based compensation expense related to
share based payment awards, and employee stock purchases under FAS 123(R) for the years ended
September 28, 2007 and September 29, 2006, which were allocated as follows:

2007 2006

Costol Sales ... e e s $ 425 % 189
Research and Development . ... ... uiiiiin i i iiiaes 379 141
Sales and Marketing .. ... ..ot e e 1,753 767
General and AmEnistrative . ... .. ... e e 1.889 2.280
RESIMUCIUIING . ... o i e i it st e s — 51
Share based compensation expense included in operating expenses ........... 4,021 3,239
Share based compensation expense related 1o employee stock options, restricted

stock, and employee stock purchases .. ........ ... ... i e 4,446 3.428
Assumed tax benefil . ... ... .. e i e e e (1,756) (1,272)
Share based compensation expense related to employee siock oplions, restricted

stock, and employee stock purchases. netoftax ........................ $269 $2156
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THREE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 28, 2007
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts, and share data)

Prior to the adoption of FAS 123(R), the Company accounted for share based compeansation under the
recognition and measurement provision of APB 25. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and
diluted net income per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FAS 123 to
share based compensation for the year ended September 30, 2005

Sept. 30,
2008

Net income (loss)—as reported forthe priorperiod (1) ... ... .. i s $(34,880)
Share based compensation expense related to employee stock options, restricted stock, and employee

BIOCK PUICRASES (4) ... ittt i e e e e e e 5,628
1O =114 1 SRS 2,223
Share based compensation expense related to employee stock option, restricted stock, and employee

stock purchases, net of 1ax () ... .. i e e e 3,405
Net income (loss), including the effect of share based compensation expense (3) ................. 3$(38.285)
Diluted income (loss) per share before cumulative effect of accounting change—as reported for the

PrOT PEHIOT (1) .+ ottt it ettt e i $ @3n
Diluted income (loss) per share before cumulative effect of accounting change, including the effect of

share based compensation expense (3) .. .. ... e 3 (2.60)

(1) Net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share prior to fiscal 2006 did not include share based
compensalion expense for employee stock options and employee stock purchases under FAS 123 because
the Company did not adopt the recognition provisions of FAS 123,

(2) Share based compensation expense prior to fiscal 2006 represents pro forma information based on FAS 123.

{3} Net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share prior to fiscal 2006 represents pro forma information
based on FAS 123.

(4) Share based compensation expense in periods prior to fiscal 2006 and not reported in the statement of
operations represents expense related to employee stock options and employee stock purchases.

As of September 28, 2007, total future compensation expense related to nonvested stock options and
restricted stock is expected to be $3,229 and $4,060, respectively. This expense is anticipated to be recognized
through the founh quanter of fiscal 2010,

Upon adoption of FAS [23(R), the Company continued its methodology of calculating the valve of
employee stock options on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model which it also used for the purpose of
the pro forma financial information in accordance with FAS 123,

The use of a Black-Scholes mode! requires the use of estimates of employee exercise behavior data and
other assumptions including expected volatility, risk-free interest rate, and expected dividends; the assumpiions
used in 2007, 2006, and 2005 are summarized in the following table:

2007 2006 2005

Risk Free ineresSl FAIE .. ...ttt ittt ie ettt iraiea et e ia e 407% 4.8% 3.6%
Expecteddividend yield . ....... ... . i i e —_ - —
Expected lives (inyears) ........ .. . ... i e 339 405 42
Expected volatility ...... ...ttt e 36.15%45.0% 63.6%

The Company estimates volatility based on its historical stock price volatility for a period consistem with the
expected life of its opiions, The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon observed interest rates appropriate
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THREE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 28, 2007
{Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts, and share data)

for the expected life of the Company's employee stock options. The dividend yield assumption is based on the
Company's history and expectation of dividend payouts. The expected life of employee stock options represents the
weighted-average period the stock options are expected to remain outstanding based on historical experience.

As share based compensation expense recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for fiscal
2007 is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures, FAS 123(R)
requires forfeitures to be estimated ai the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates. Forfeitures were estimated bused on historical and anticipated future
experience. In the Company's pro forma information required under FAS 123 for the pericds prior to fiscal 2006,
the Company accounted for forfeitures as they occurred.

Dilutive Effect of Employee Stock Benefit Plans

Basic shares outstanding for the periods ending September 28, 2007, September 29, 2006, and September 30,
2005 were 17,374,000 shares, 15,166,000 shares, and 14,699,000 sharcs, respectively. Diluted shares outstanding
for the periods ending September 28, 2007, September 29, 2006, and September 30, 2005 were 17,374,000 shares,
15,437,000 shares, and 14,699,000 shares, respectively. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128,
“Eamings per Share,” requires that employee equity share options, nonvested shares and similar equity
instruments granted by the Company are Ireated as potential common shares in computing diluted earnings per
share. Diluted shares outstanding include the dilutive effect of in-the-money options which is calculated based on
the average share price for each fiscal period using the treasury stock method. Under the treasury stock method.
the amount that the employee must pay for exercising stock options, the amount of compensation cost for future
service that the Company has not yet recognized. and the amount of tax benefits or deficiencies that would be
recorded in additional paid-in capital when the award becomes deductible are assumed 10 be used to repurchase
shares. There was no dilutive effect of in-the-money employee stock options as of September 28, 2007, due to the
Company incurring a net loss for the year. For the year ended September 29, 2006. the dilutive effect of
in-the-money employee stock options was approximately 271,000, based on the Company’s average share price
for the same period of $12.02. There was no dilutive effect of in-the-money employee stock options as of
September 30, 2005. due to the Company incurring a net loss for the year.

NOTE 12 COMMITMENTS

Most of the Company’s office and manufacturing facilities are subject to long-term operating leases. In
addition, regional sales offices and automobiles are subject to leases with terms ranging from one to twelve months.

Al September 28, 2007, the minimum annual operating lease payments are:

Flscal years ending in September

0 - S SN § 6,132

2000 e e e 4,252

1. G 3713

2 1 18 O 3423

-0 2,681

. 3= 1T 1= 3.006
$23.207
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Total rent expense was $5,609, $3.819, and $4,244, for the years ended September 28, 2007, September 29.
2006, and September 30, 2005, respectively.

NOTE 13 BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company is organized based on various display businesses, primarily specially displays. Under this
organizational structure, the Company operates in five main segments: Medical, Industrial, Commercial, Control
Room and Signage. and Home Theater. The Medical segment derives revenue primarily from diagnostic imaging
systems for radiology. The Industrial segment derives revenue primarily through the development and marketing
of electroluminescent displays (EL), liquid crystal displays and color active matrix liquid crystal displays in
specialty applications. The Commercial segment derives revenue primarily through the marketing of LCD
desktop monitors, other touch displays, and projectors that are sold through distributors o end users. The Conirol
Room and Signage segmemt derives revenue primarily through the marketing of scalable video-wall displays and
a line of large-area flat screen digital signage products, which include software (o manage the signage content.
These products are sold through dealers to end users. The Home Theater segment derives revenue primarily from
the sales of innovative products for the high-end home theater enthusiast including high-performance home
theater projection systems, large-format thin video displays, und front-projection screens.

Effective September 30, 2006 the Company changed the presentation of the Medical and Industrial
segments. Certain revenues, which primarily relate to EL products sold for medical applications, which were
previously presented under the Medical segment, have been moved to the Industrial segment. Prior year amounis
have been reclassified to conform to the current year segment presentation. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006,
the Company added a new business unit, Control Room and Signage as a result of the acquisition of Clarity
Visual Systems, Inc. In fiscal 2006 results for this business unit were aggregated with the Industrial segment as
they did not meet the threshold requirements for separate disclosure at that time. Prior year amounts have been
reclassified from the Industrial segment to the Control Room and Signage segment to conform with the fiscal
2007 presentation. Effective March 31, 2007 the Company created the Home Theater segment due to the
introduction of Planar branded Home Theater products and new product offerings associated with the Runco
acquisition. Cenain revenues, which primarily relate to home theater projectors, large-format thin displays, and
screens, which were previously presented under the Commercial segment, have been reclassified to the Home
Theater segment; revenues associated with Runco are also presented in the Home Theater segment.
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The information provided below is obtained from internal information that is provided to the Company’s
chief operation decision-maker for the purpose of corporate management. Operating income (loss) from the
business units includes specifically identifiable costs related to research and development, product development,
and sales and marketing directly associated with each of the business units. Product development expenses and
marketing and sales expenses are specifically identified by segment. Corporate expenses consist of expenses that
are not directly associated with a particular segment and include general research expense, general marketing
expense, finance and administration expense, human resources expense, information sysiems expense,
restructuring and impairment charges, acquisition related cosls, and share based compensation costs. Interest
expense, interest income, other non-operating items and income taxes by segment are not included in the intemnal
segment information provided to the chief operating decision-maker and are therefore not presented separately
below, Inler-segment sales are not material and are included in net sales 10 external customers below.

2007 2006 2005
Net sales to external customers (by segment);
Medical ... e et e e $ 43,162 $ 44079 § 44,506
INAUSIEIAL . ot ettt e e e e 61,581 80,025 85,160
e 111113 7 1 A 78,552 83,442 102,166
Control Room and Signage ..., 65,292 4,657 —
Home Theater ... ... . it i ra e iatariairannnrns 23,628 523 —_
Total SalES . vt ottt e e e $272,2t5 $212,726 $231,832
Sales to extermal customers (by geography):
United States ... oo ih v et i i e $198,055 $165,031 $190,179
0T 7T O 74.160 47,695 41,653
Total SAIES . . . oo e e $272,215 $212,726 $231,832
Operating income (loss):
Medical ..o e $ 409 § 5212 § 58
Industrial ... ... v i i e e e e e 14,361 22,757 24,642
COMMEICIAl .. it e e e e e 2,778 2,169 (559)
Control Roomand Signage . ........ ... it 20 703 —
Home Thealer . ... o i ittt iir et irnrrreeecaiasanaronsss (5.480) (1,044) —
COIPOrale .. e e e ey {38,244) (21,274) (62,341)
Total operating income (1085) . . ... . ...ttt e it ${(22,469) $ 8523 $(38,200)

The assets and related capital expenditures of the Company are not reported by segment. Propenty, plant and
equipment by geography was as follows:

2007 2006
L $ 9930 3 6,706
BUTOPE .« e e e e e 4,988 4.174
Total property, plant, and eqUIPMENL ... .. ottt e i tiire i niar s $14,918 $10.880
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Goodwill allocated to the Company's business segments as of September 28, 2007 and September 29, 2006
is as follows:

2007 2006
MediCal .. e et e e e 511,268 $11,268
(TS T 0 T A 3,428 3,428
Control Roomand Signage .. ... e 32,440 37,300
3 [ -0 0 1071 - 20,293 —
Total GoodWill ...ttt e e e e e e $67.429 $51,996

Products from the Medical and Commercial segments sotd to one customer comprised 1%, 17%, and 16%
of total consolidated sales in fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2003, respectively. Products sold within the Medical and
Commercial segments to another customer comprised 6%, 12%, and 10% of total consolidated sales in 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

NOTE 14 401{K) AND PENSION PLAN

All employees in North America over 21 years of age are eligible to participate in the 401(k) savings and
profit sharing plan. Employees can contribute up to statutory maximums. The Company matches 5.5% of each
participating employee’s eligible compensation, also subject to statutory maximums. Employer contributions vest
immediately. The 401(k) plan expense amounted to $1,529, $798, and $684, for the years ended September 28,
2007, September 29, 2006, and September 30, 2003, respectively.

The Company's foreign subsidiary, located in Finland, paricipates in a multiemployer pension plan in
which all employees receive defined benefit payments upon retirement. The Company recognized expense of
$1,391, $1,233, and $1,230 in fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2003, respectively, related to this plan.

NOTE 15 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Comprehensive income (loss) and its components have no impact on the Company’s ael income (loss).
Comprehensive income (loss) and its components were as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Net income (loss) {net of tax expense (benefit) of $1,459, $3,897. and ($2,946),
PESPECUVRIY ) . . ot e e $(23,184) $6,280 $(34,880)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Currency translation adjustment . .......... it i e 3603 1712 (763)
Total comprehensive income (J0SS} .. ... oouiiv ittt i, $(19,581) $7.992 $(35,643)

NOTE 16 STAFF ACCOUNTING BULLETIN NO. 108

As discussed under Recent Accounting Pronouncements in Note 1, in September 2006, the SEC issued

" SAB 108, The transitional provisions of SAB 108 permit the Company to adjust for the cumulative effect on

retained eamings of errors relating to prior years that were previously considered immaterial. SAB 108 aiso
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requires the adjustment of any prior quarterly financial statements within the fiscal year of adoption for the
effects of such errors on the quarters when the information is next presented. Such adjustments do not require
previously filed reports with the SEC (o be amended. In accordance with SAB 108, the Company has adjusted
beginning retained eamings for fiscal 2007 in the accompanying consclidated financial statements for the items
described below. The Company considers these adjustments to be immaterial 1o prior periods.

In June 2002 the Company eniered into a lease for a building in Beaverton, Oregon which serves as the
Company's headquarters: the terms of the lease include escalating lease payments over the life of the lease. This
lease has been properly accounted for as an operating lease but the expense associated with this lease was based
on actual payments instead of a straight-line basis in accordance with the SFAS 13, “Accounting for Leases.”
The cumulative error resulted in a reduction to 2007 beginning retained earnings of $313, net of tax and an
increase in long-term liabilities for the deferred rent liability as of September 30, 2006 of $518,
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s
management, including the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based
on that evaluation, the CEQ and CFO have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are
effective. There were no significant changes in the Company's internal controls or in other factors during fiscal
2007 that could significantly affect our internal controls over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(f). Under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our CEO and CFO, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness
of our internal controls over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our
evaluation under the framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our
internal controls over financial reporting were effective as of September 28, 2007. We acquired Runco
International, Inc. during 2007. We excluded Runco from our assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's
internal controls over financial reponting as of September 28, 2007. The Company has been working through the
integration of the acquisition and additional work remains to relating to integrating business systems and global
manufacturing and validating internal control processes over accounting transactions. The Company believes that
the reviews and activities related 1o the Runco acquisition will be completed by the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.
Runco’s internal controls over financial reporting were associated with total assets of $31,555 excluding
goodwill of $20,293 and revenues of $20,159.

“The effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting as of September 28, 2007 has been audited

by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting included below.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Planar Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries:

We have audited Planar Systems, Inc. (the Company) and its subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting
as of September 28, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Inregrared Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0), Planar Systems Inc. management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audil in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Qversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtein reasonable assurance about
whether effective intemal control over financial reperting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a matenal weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We belicve
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financia) reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) perain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions arc recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company arc being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of September 28, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Commiltee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

The Company acquired Runco International, Inc. during 2007, and managemeni excluded from its assessment of
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of September 28, 2007, Runco
International Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting associated with total net assets of $31,555,000 excluding
goodwill of $20,293,000 and total revenues of $20,159,000 included in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and subsidiaries as of and for the year ended September 28, 2007. Our audit of internal contro! over financial
reporting of the Company also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Runco
International, Inc.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Planar Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 28, 2007 and
September 29, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, sharcholders’ equity and comprehensive income
(loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 28, 2007, and our report dated
December 12, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Portland, Oregon
December 12, 2007
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Item 9B. Other Information

Naone.

Part I1I

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance of Planar Systems, Inc.

The information set forth under the captions “Election of Directors”, “Management” and “Section 16(2)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance™ appearing in the Proxy Statement to be used in connection with
the Annual Meeting of Shareholders on February 21, 2008, is incorporated by reference into this Report,

The Company has adopted the Planar Employees’ Code of Conduct that applies to all of the Company’s
directors, officers and employees. A copy of the Code of Conduct is incorporated by reference as an Exhibit to this
Report. The Planar Employees’ Code of Conduct is publicly available on the Company’s website under the
Investors section (at http://www.planar.com/CCBN/governance.cfm). None of the material on the Company’s
website is part of this report. If there is any waiver from any provision of the Planar Employees’ Code of Conduct 10
the Company's execulive officers or directors, the Company will disclose the rature of such waiver on its website or
in a report on Form 8-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information set forth under the captions “Election of Directors—Director Compensation,” “Executive
Compensation,” “Compensation Committee Report of the Compensation Committec” and “Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” appearing in the Proxy Statement to be used in connection with
the Annual Meeting of Shareholders on February 21, 2008, is incorporated by reference into this Report.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information set forth under the captions “Executive Compensation—Equity Compensation Plan
Information” and “Stock Owned by Management and Principal Shareholders™ appearing in the Proxy Statement
to be used in connection with the Annual Meeting of Shareholders on February 21, 2008, is incorporated by
reference into this Report.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information set forth under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions™ and “Election
of Directors” appearing in the Proxy Statement to be used in connection with the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders on February 21, 2008, is incorporated by reference into this Report,

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information set forth under the caption “Principal Accountant Fees and Services™ appearing in the
Proxy Statement 1o be used in connection with the Annual Meeting of Shareholders on February 21, 2008, is
incorporated by reference into this Report.
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Part 1V

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement, Schedules

(a)(1) Financial Statements

The Mnancial statements of Planar Systems, Inc. as set forth under ltem 8 are filed as part of this report.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules have been omitted since the information called for is not present in amounts
sufficient to require submission of the schedules.

The independent registered public accounting firm report with respect to the above-listed financial
slatemnents appears on page 28 of this report.

(a)(3) Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Title
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization by and among Planar Systems, Inc.. Comell

22

3.1
3.2
33
34
4.1
4.2

10.1

10.2
10.3

10.4
10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Acquisition Corporation, Clarity Visual Systems, In¢. and certain other parties date as of July 18,
2006 (4)

Assetl Purchase Agreement by and among Compten Acquisition, Inc., Runco International, Inc., and
the stockholders of Runco International, Inc., dated as of May 23, 2007 (23)

Second Restated Articles of Incorporation of Planar Systems, Inc. (1)

Second Restated Bylaws of Planar Systems, Inc. (7)

Amendment to Second Restated Articles of Incorporation of Planar Systems, Iac. (2)
Second Amendment to Second Restated Anicles of Incorporation of Planar Systems, Inc (3)
Specimen stock certificate (1)

Rights Agreement dated as of February 3, 2006 between Planar Systems, Inc. and Mellon Investor
Services, LLC. (3}

Form of Indemnity Agreement between Planar Systems, Inc. and each of its executive officers and
directors* (1}

1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan* (1)

Lease agreement dated as of May 20. 1998 between Metra Corporation and Planar International. Ltd
{English translation) (5)

1996 Stock Incentive Plan* (6)

Lease agreement dated May 30, 1997 between Pacific Realty Associates, L.P. and Planar America,
Inc. (6)

Nongualified Stock Option Agreement between Planar Systems, inc. and Balakrishnan
Krishnamurthy dated as of September 27, 1999* (7)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Planar Systems, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Plan
dated as of May 24, 1999* (7)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Planar Systems, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Plan
dated as of May 24, 1999* (7)
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Exhibit

Number Title

10.9 Planar Systems, [nc. 1999 Nonqualified Stock Option Plan* (7)

10.10 Planar Systems, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan* (7)

10.11 Lease agreement dated August 23, 2001 between Amberjack, Lid. and Planar Systems, Inc. (9)

10.12 Addendum to lease agreement dated August 23, 2001 between Amberjack, Ltd. and Planar Systems,
Inc. (9)

10.13 Master Equipment Lease dated June 24, 2002 between The Fifth Third Leasing Company and Planar
Systems, [nc. {10)

10.14 Credit Agreement Dated as of December 16, 2003 among Planar Systems, Inc. and Bank of America,
N.A(11)

10.15 First Amendment to Credit Agreement by and between Planar Systems, Inc. and Bank of America,
National Association, dated as of December 21, 2004 (12)

10.16 Planar Systems, Inc. 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan* (13)

10.17 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement by and between Planar Systems, Inc. and Bank of America,
National Associated, dated as of October 21, 2005* (14)

10.18 Executive Employment Agreement by and between Planar Systems, Inc. and Gerald Perke! dated
September 26, 2005* (15)

10.19 Restricted Stock Agreement between Planar Systems, Inc. and Gerald Perkel dated September 26,
2005* (15)

10.20 Nongualified Stock Option Agreement between Planar Systems, Inc. and Gerald Perkel dated
September 26, 2005* (15)

10.21 Letter Agreement between Scott Hildebrandt and Planar Systems, Inc. dated as of November 22,
2005* (16)

10.22 Restricted Stock Award Agreement between Planar Systems, Inc. and Scott Hildebrandt duted as of
November 22, 2005* (16)

10.23 Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement between Planar Systems, Inc. and Scott Hildebrandt dated as
of November 22, 2005* (16)

10.24 Amended and Restated Planar Systems, Inc 1993 Stock Option Plan for Nonemployee Directors (17)

10.25 Planar Systems, Inc Performance Based Compensation Plan (18)

10.26 Planar Systems, Inc Director Compensation Plan (18)

10.27 Letter Agreement between Scott Hix and Planar Systems, Inc dated as of May 2, 2006* (20)

10.28 Restricted Stock Agreement between Planar Systems, Inc and Scott Hix dated as of May 2, 2006* (20)

10.29 Restricted Stock Agreement between Planar Systems, Inc. and Scott Hix dated May 2, 2006* (20)

10.30 Letter Agreement between Brad Gleeson and Planar Systems, Inc. dated as of July 17, 2006* (20)
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i Exhibit
Number Title

10.31 Employment Agreement between Planar Systems, Inc. and Paul Gulick dated as of July 18, 2006* (20)
10.32 Employment Agreement between Planar Systems Inc. and Kris Gorriaran dated as of July 17, 2006* (20}
10.33 Clarity Visual Systems, Inc. 1995 Stock Incentive Plan* (19)

10.34 Clarity Visual Systems Inc. Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan* (19)

10.35 Lease Agreement dated as of December 27, 2006 between Techpeointe Commons and Planar
Systems, Inc (21)

10.36 Terms of Employment between Planar Systems, Inc. and Stephen Going dated as of January 22,
2007* (22)

10.37 Executive Stock Option Agreement between Planar Systems, Inc. and Stephen Going dated as of
March 5, 2007* (22)

10.38 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement between Planar Systems, Inc. and Bank of America, National
Association, dated as of May 23, 2007 (23)

10.39 Terms of Employment between Planar Systems, Inc. and Terri Timberman dated as of April 10,
2007* (24)

10.40 Nonqualified Stock Option Agresment between Planar Systems, Inc. and Terri Timberman dated as
of May 14, 2007* (24)

10.41 Restricted Stock Award Agreement between Planar Systems, Inc. and Terri Timberman dated as of
May 14, 2007* (24)
10.42 Form for Performance Share Agreement between Planar Systems, Inc. and Douglas Bamnes, Mark

Ceciliani, Bradley Gleeson, Stephen Going, Kristina Gorriarian, Paul Gulick, E. Scont Hildebrandt,
Scott Hix, J. Jack Ehren, Gerald Perkel, and Terri Timberman* (24)

10.43 Form of Executive Severance Agreement dated and effective as of June 25, 2007 (Jack Ehren, Doug
Barnes, Mark Ceciliani, Brad Gleeson, Kris Gorriaran, Steve Going, Scou Hix and Temi
Timberman)* (25)

10.44 Form of Execulive Severance Agreement dated and effective as of June 25, 2007 (Scott
Hildebrandt)* (28)

10.45 Form of Fiscal Year 2008 to Fiscal Year 2010 Long Term Incentive Plan Award Agreement* (26)
10.46 Restricted Stock Agreement between Planar Systems, Inc. and Stephen Going dated as of March 5,

2007+

10.47 Planar Systems, Inc. 2007 New Hire Incentive Plan*

14.0 Code of Conduct of Planar Systems, Inc. (12)

21.0 Subsidiaries of Planar Systems, Inc.

230 Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent registered public accounting firm

240 Power of Attorney (included on Signature Page)

311 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

312 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

| Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
322 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 33-71020),
declared effective on December 15, 1993,
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(2) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 27,
1996,

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on February 9, 2006.

(4) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-X filed July 21, 2006.

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on form 10-K for the year ended September 25,
1998,

(6) Incorporated by reference 10 the Company’s Annual Report on form 10-K for the year ended September 26,
1997,

(7) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 24,
1999

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quanerly Report on Form 10-Q for the guarter ended
December 29, 2000.

(9) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 28,
2001.

(10) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quanerly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 28,
2002,

(11) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 26,
2003.

(12) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on 8-K filed on December 28, 2004.

(13) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
December 31, 2004.

{14} Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 21, 2005.

(15) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30,
2005.

(16) incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 29, 2005.

(17) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Proxy Statement dated December 22, 2005 filed on
December 29, 2005,

(18) Incorporated by reference 1o the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarer ended
December 30, 2005.

(19) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-138064)
filed on Qctober 18, 2006.

(20) Incorporated by reference 1o the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 29,
2006.

(21) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
December 29, 2006,

(22) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 30, 2007.

(23) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 30, 2007.

(24) Incorporated by reference 10 the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 29,
2007.

(25) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-X filed on August 15, 2007.

(26) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 15, 2007.

* This exhibit constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan or arangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Registrani has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

PLANAR SYSTEMS, INC

December 12, 2007 By: 18/ ScoTT HILDEBRANDT

Scott Hildebrandi
Vice President
Chief Financial Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Gerald Perke! and Scott Hildebrandt, and each of them singly, as his true and lawful
attoreys-in-fact, with full power of substitution, for him in any and all capacities. to sign any amendments to
this Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said
attorneys-in-fact, or his substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant (o the requirements of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dated indicated.

fs/ GeERraLD K. PERKEL President, Chiel Executive Officer, December 12, 2007
Gerald K. Perkel Director (Principal Executive Officer)
Is!  ScorT HILDEBRANDT Vice President and Chief Financial December 12, 2007
Scott Hildebrandt Officer, (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)
Is/ CARL NEUN Director December 12, 2007
Carl Neun
fs/  WALTER W. NOCE, JR. Director December 12, 2007

Walter W. Noce, Ir.

fs/  HEINRICH STENGER Director December 12, 2007
Heinrich Stenger

fs/ E. KAy STEPP Director December 12, 2007
E. Kay Stepp
/s GREGORY H. TURNBULL Chairman December 12. 2007

Gregory H. Tumnbuli

Is/  STEVEN E. WYNNE Director December 12, 2007
Steven E. Wynne

Isf MICHAEL GULLARD Director December 12, 2007
Michael Guilard
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

J, Michael Gullard
2006’

Carl W. Neun
2000

Walter W. (Bill) Noce Jr.
2005

Gerald K. (Gerry) Perket
2005

Heinsich Stenger
1997

E. Kay Stepp
1968'

Gregory H.Turnbull
Chairman
1986

Steven E. Wynne
1996
"Yeor elecied (o the boord

CORPORATE OFFICERS

Geratd K. (Gerry) Perkel
President and
Chief Executive Officer

£. Scott Hildebrandt
Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Dounglas K. Barnes

Vice President and

General Manager,
Industrial Business Unit and
Medical Business Unit

Mark A, Ceciliani

Vice President and
General Manager,
Commercial Business Unit

Jack Ehren
Vice Presiden,
Global Operations

PLANAR
T —

CORPORATE OFFICERS fcontd)

Brad Gleeson
Vice President,
Business Development

Stephen M. Going
Vice President,
Genesal Counsel and Secretary

Kristina {Kris) Gorriardn
vice President and

General Manager,

Control Room and

Digita} Signage Business Unit

Scott P Hix

Vice President and

General Manager,

Home Theater Business Unit

Terri Timberman
Vice President
Human Resources

PLANAR OPERATIONS

Corporate Headquarters
Planar Systemns, [nc.

1195 Nw Compiton Drive
Beaverton, Oregon
97006-1992, USA

Toll-Free: +1866.475.2627
{United States and Canada)
Phone; +1503.748.1100
Fax: +1.503.748.1244

Email: sales@planarcom

Additional Locations and Offices
Espoo, Finland
Albi, France
Paris, France
Rome, l1aly
Hallbergmoos, Germany
Shanghai, Pecple’s Republtic of China
tondon, England, United Kingdem
Waltham, Massachusetts,

United States of America
Englewood, New Jersey,

Uniked States of America
Union City, California

United States of America
Taipel, Toiwan

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Planar Systems, Inc.

1195 Nw Compton Drive
Beaverion, Oregon
97006-1992, USA

Pheone: +1.503.748.1100
Fax: +1.503.748.1541
Email: invest@planar.com

Information on Planar products,
technologies, conference calls
and financial reports, plus a press
release archive, can be found at
www.planarcom,

The annual meeting of shareholders
will be hekd Fetruary 2ist, 2008,

COMMON STOCK INFORMATION
The common stock of Planar
Systerns, inc. irades on the
NASDAQ Nationa! Market under
the Symbol "PLNR The company
has never paid and does not
anticipate paying dividends in
the foreseeable future.

Legal Counsel
Arer Wynne LLP
Portland. Oregon

Independent Auditor
KPMG LLP
Portland, Oregon

Transfer Agent

BNY Mellon

Shareowner Services

85 Challenger Road

Ridgefield Park, New Jersey
07660, USA

Phone: +1.800.522.6045

TDD: +1.800.231.5469

web: www.melloninvesiorncom
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PLANAR

www.planar.com
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